
DESERT WATER AGENCY             BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
MARCH 19,  2024                                                                                       REGULAR MEETING AGENDA                                            
 

8:00 A.M. OPERATIONS CENTER - 1200 SOUTH GENE AUTRY TRAIL  – PALM SPRINGS – CALIFORNIA 
 
This meeting will be held virtually and in person. The link and the telephone option provided is for the convenience of the 
public. 

Toll Free: (253) 215-8782 
Meeting ID: 851 9817 5734 

Passcode: 071495 
or Via Computer: 

https://dwa-org.zoom.us/j/85198175734?pwd=pNMgsdAQW1QhxkqTLJd3iurqTB0g7R.1 
Meeting ID: 851 9817 5734 

 
Members of the public who wish to comment on any item within the jurisdiction of the Agency or any item on the agenda 
may submit comments by emailing sbaca@dwa.org or may do so during the meeting. Comments will become part of the 
Board meeting record.  
*In order to reduce feedback, please mute your audio when you are not speaking. 
 
Esta reunión se llevará a cabo virtualmente y en persona. El enlace y la opción telefónica proporcionada es para la 
comodidad del público. 
 

Número gratuito: (253) 215-8782 
ID de reunión: 851 9817 5734 

código de acceso: 071495 
o a través de la computadora: 

https://dwa-org.zoom.us/j/85198175734?pwd=pNMgsdAQW1QhxkqTLJd3iurqTB0g7R.1 
ID de reunión: 851 9817 5734 

Los miembros del público que deseen comentar sobre cualquier tema dentro de la jurisdicción de la Agencia o cualquier 
tema en la agenda pueden enviar comentarios por correo electrónico a sbaca@dwa.org o pueden hacerlo durante la 
reunión. Los comentarios pasarán a formar parte del registro de la reunión de la Junta.  
*Para reducir los comentarios, silencia el audio cuando no estés hablando. 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER ORTEGA 
 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE ORTEGA 
 

3. ROLL CALL  HOFFMAN 
 
 

4. PUBLIC COMMENT ON ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA: Members of the public may comment on any item not listed 
on the agenda, but within the jurisdiction of the Agency. Speakers are requested to keep their comments to no more 
than three (3) minutes. As provided in the Brown Act, the Board is prohibited from acting on items not listed on the 
agenda. 
 

5. PUBLIC COMMENT ON ITEMS LISTED ON THE AGENDA:  Members of the public may also comment on items listed 
on the agenda that are not the subject of a public hearing at this time. Again, speakers are requested to keep their 
comments to no more than three (3) minutes. 

 
                  

 
 
 
 
 

mailto:sbaca@dwa.org
mailto:sbaca@dwa.org


 
DWA Board Agenda 
March 19, 2024 
Page 2 of 3 
 

 
6. CONSENT CALENDAR ITEMS: Items listed under the Consent Calendar are considered to be routine and will be acted  
 upon by one motion of the Board without discussion. There will be no separate discussion on these items unless a Board 
 Member requests a specific item to be discussed and/or removed from the Consent Calendar for separate action.  
 

A. Receive and File Minutes of the February 28, 2024 Conservation & Public Affairs Committee Meeting 
B. Receive and File – February 2024 Outreach & Conservation Activities & Events 
C. Approve Minutes of the March 5, 2024 Regular Board Meeting 
D. Receive and File Minutes of the March 14, 2024 Executive Committee Meeting 
E. Request Authorization to Continue Emergency Repair Work at DWA Facilities Under Resolution No. 1312 
 

7. ACTION ITEMS: 
A. Request Board Action on Customer Appeal – Belal El Bostany JOHNSON 
B. Request Adoption of Bill Position Recommendations                                                                        JOHNSON/REEB 
C. Request Authorization for Finance Director to Execute Agreement for Management and SAENZ 

Administrative Services with Regional Government Services for Strategic Planning Facilitation Services  
 

8. DISCUSSION ITEMS: 
A. Update on Phase 1 of 30” Avenida Caballeros Pipeline Replacement Project  MOLHOEK 
 (Ramon Road to Tahquitz Canyon Way) 
B. Request Authorization for Board Attendance at the Riverside County Water Task Force Event JOHNSON  

 
9. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT  JOHNSON 

 
10. DIRECTORS REPORTS ON MEETINGS/EVENTS ATTENDED ON BEHALF OF THE AGENCY 

  
11. DIRECTORS COMMENTS/REQUESTS 
 
12. CLOSED SESSION  
 

A. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – EXISTING LITIGATION 
 Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9 (d) (1) 
 Name of Case: Mission Springs Water District vs. Desert Water Agency 
 
B. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – EXISTING LITIGATION 
 Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9 (d) (1) 
 Name of Case: AT&T vs. County of Riverside 
 
C. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – POSSIBLE INTERVENTION IN EXISTING LITIGATION 
 Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9 (d) (4) 
 Name of Case: Southern California Edison vs. California State Board of Equalization, et al 
 One Case 
 
D. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – EXISTING LITIGATION   
 Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9 (d) (1) 
 Name of Case: Agua Caliente Band of Cahuilla Indians vs. Coachella Valley Water District, et al 
  Two Cases 
 
E. PUBLIC EMPLOYMENT 
  Pursuant to Government Code Section 54957 
  Unrepresented Employee: General Manager 
 
 
 
 



 
DWA Board Agenda 
March 19, 2024 
Page 3 of 3 
 

 
 
 
 
F. CONFERENCE WITH REAL PROPERTY NEGOTIATORS 
       Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.8 
       Property: APN# 680-180-029 
       Agency Negotiators: Steve L. Johnson, General Manager and David Tate Asst. General Manager 
       Negotiating Parties: Desert Water Agency and The Palm Springs Surf Club 
       Under Negotiations: Possible Easement Agreement 
 

13. RECONVENE INTO OPEN SESSION – REPORT FROM CLOSED SESSION 
 

14. ADJOURN 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

DECLARATION OF POSTING 
 

Pursuant to Government Code Section 54954.2, I certify that this agenda has been posted at least 72 hours prior to the meeting on the 
Agency’s website at www.dwa.org and at the Agency’s office located at 1200 South Gene Autry Trail, Palm Springs, CA.                                                                               
 
 
Sylvia Baca, MMC, Assistant Secretary of the Board 

Upon request, this agenda will be made available in appropriate alternative formats to persons with disabilities, as required by Section 202 of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 
1990. Any person with a disability who requires a modification or accommodation in order to participate in a meeting is asked to contact Desert Water Agency’s Assistant Secretary of 
the Board, at (760) 323-4971, at least 48 working hours prior to the meeting to enable the Agency to make reasonable arrangements. Copies of records provided to Board members 
that relate to any agenda item to be discussed in open session may be obtained from the Agency at the address indicated on the agenda. 



6-A 

X:\Sylvia\Board - Everything\Board - Committee Meetings\2024 Committee Meetings\022824 Conservation and Public Affairs Committee Minutes.docx 

Minutes 
Conservation & Public Affairs Committee  

February 28, 2024 
 
 

Directors Present:  Paul Ortega, Steve Grasha 
Staff Present:  Steve Johnson, David Tate, Clark Elliott, Xochitl Pena,  
    Ernye Valenciano 
Consultant Present:  Ashley Metzger 
Public Present:   None 
   

1. Public Comments - None 
 

2. Discussion Items 
 

A. Palm Springs Visitor Center 
The Committee discussed the Spring Preserve in Las Vegas as a site with features that may 
be useful to consider for the expansion of the Palm Springs Visitor Center.  

 
B. Upcoming Events 

The Committee reviewed upcoming events. 
 
C. Compensable events list 

The Committee discussed current compensable events and alternatives that may 
provide more opportunities to engage with the public and other stakeholders.  
Staff shared information on event sponsorship.  

 
D. Milestones and Memorials 

The Committee considered options for a formal policy to guide Agency procedures when an 
employee or community member experiences injury, sickness or death in the family.  

 
E. Public Affairs Budget 

The Committee reviewed the current fiscal year’s budget for Public Affairs expenses and 
the proposed budget for FY 24-25. 

 
F. Regional Conservation Study update 

Staff updated the Committee on the preliminary results of the Regional Conservation Study 
and discussed the direction of the study. 

 
G. Urban Water Use Objective update 

Staff provided an update on the draft Urban Water Use Objective regulations. 
 
H. Conservation Programs 

The Committee discussed incentive program participation. 
  
I. Conservation Budget 

The Committee reviewed the current fiscal year’s budget for Conservation expenses 
and the proposed budget for FY 24-25. 

 



6-B 
 

DESERT WATER AGENCY 
 

OUTREACH & CONSERVATION 
ACTIVITIES 

 
FEBRUARY 2024 

 
Activities 

2/1 Ashley Metzger was on a live segment with KESQ. 
2/6 Staff attended CV Water Counts Academy. 
2/8 Xochitl Pẽna was on a live segment with KESQ. 
2/8 Xochitl Pẽna and Ashley Metzger attended a 2024 Legislative “next steps” meeting. 

2/13 Clark Elliott attended a ONE-PS monthly meeting. 
2/13 Ernye Valenciano attended CV Water Counts Academy. 
2/14 Staff attended a CVRWMG Business meeting. 
2/14 Xochitli Pẽna attended a CAPIO 2024 State of Communications meeting. 
2/15 Ashley Metzger was on a live segment with KESQ. 
2/19 Ashley Metzger attended a Desert/Coachella/Metropolitan Coordination Call. 
2/20 Ernye Valenciano & Xochitl Pẽna attend CV Water Counts Academy. 
2/22 Xochitli Pẽna was on a live segment with KESQ. 
2/22 Xochitli Pẽna and Ashley Metzger attended a Legislative update meeting. 
2/22 Xochitli Pẽna attended an ACWA Communications Committee meeting. 
2/23 Xochitli Pẽna recorded a radio interview with Joey English. 
2/23 Ashley Metzger attended a bi-monthly Save our Water (SOW) meeting. 
2/27 Staff hosted a Tour with Desert Hot Springs High School students at the Mission 

Creek Replenishment Facility. 
2/28 Staff attended a CV-SNMP monthly meeting. 
2/29 Xochitli Pẽna was on a live segment with KESQ. 

Public Information Releases/eblasts/Customer Notifications 
  

2/15 Press Release – Desert Water Agency General Manager Mark Krause Retires 
2/16 Latest News on website - Desert Water Agency General Manager Mark Krause 

Retires 
2/16 Nextdoor – Leak Detection Survey for Desert Water Agency 
2/22 Latest News on website – DWA Leak Detection Survey starts Feb. 26 

 
 
 
 



Outreach & Conservation Report 
Page 2 of 2 

February 2024 

Upcoming Events 

3/23 – ONE-PS Neighborhood Picnic at Ruth Hardy Park 
3/27 – Family Fun Fest at Palm Springs Stadium 
4/24 – DWA Spring tour  

Conservation Programs 

Grass Removal: 

 27 Inspections 
 12 Projects pre-approved 
 17 Projects given final approval 

Devices: 

 18 Washing machine rebates requested 
   14 Washing machine rebates approved 

   10 Smart controller rebates requested 
 12  Smart controller rebates approved 

0 Nozzles requested for rebate 
1290  Nozzles approved for rebate 

3 Toilet rebates requested (commercial) 
0 Toilet rebates approved  (commercial) 
21 Toilet rebates requested (residential) 
17   Toilet rebates requested (residential) 

  Water waste: 

  35  Total complaints submitted  
  12 Contacts to customers 
  14  Site inspections scheduled 

  4  Citations  
  1  Citations Waived 



DWA

DWA main site - GA4 Analytics 

© 2024 Google | Analytics home | Terms of Service | Privacy Policy | 

WHERE DO YOUR NEW USERS COME FROM? WHAT ARE YOUR TOP CAMPAIGNS?

HOW ARE ACTIVE USERS TRENDING? HOW WELL DO YOU RETAIN YOUR USERS?

WHICH PAGES AND SCREENS GET THE MOST VIEWS? WHAT ARE YOUR TOP EVENTS? WHAT ARE YOUR TOP CONVERSIONS? WHAT ARE YOUR TOP SELLING PRODUCTS? HOW DOES ACTIVITY ON YOUR PLATFORMS COMPARE?



04
Feb

11 18 25
0

100

200

300

400

500

New users by 


First user primary channel group (Default Channel Group)

Direct

Organic Search

Referral

Unassigned

Paid Search

Display

Organic Social

0 1K 2K 3K



 by


Sessions

Session primary channel group…



 by Country


Users



User activity over time


04
Feb

11 18 25
0

2K

4K

6K

8K

10K 30 DAYS

7K

7 DAYS

1.8K

1 DAY

320

User activity by cohort

Based on device data only


Week 0 Week 1 Week 2 Week 3 Week 4 Week 5

All Users

Jan 21 - Jan 27

Jan 28 - Feb 3

Feb 4 - Feb 10

Feb 11 - Feb 17

Feb 18 - Feb 24

Feb 25 - Mar 2

100.0% 3.0% 1.8% 1.4% 1.8% 0.7%

6 weeks ending Mar 2


Views by Page title and screen class




Event count by Event name




Conversions by Event name
 



Items purchased by

Item name


No data available



 by Platform


Conversions

WEB

100.0%





Go to report

Users

6.8K

New users

6.1K

Average engagement time

21s

Total revenue

$0.00

View user acquisition View traffic acquisition

View countries View retention

View pages and screens View events View conversions View items View tech details

Send feedback

Organic Search 4K

Direct 3.7K

Referral 551

Unassigned 419

Paid Search 392

Display 358

Organic Social 9

SESSION PRIMARY CHAN… SESSIONS

United States 6.2K

Poland 160

Canada 89

India 38

Germany 30

Mongolia 22

United Kingdom 19

COUNTRY USERS

Home - Desert Water Agency 3.8K

Pay My Bill - Desert Water Agency 1.9K

Desert Water Agency | Desert Water … 1.4K

Start Service - Desert Water Agency 1K

Desert Water Conservation Incentive… 927

library - Desert Water Agency 774

Pay My Bill | Desert Water Agency 583

PAGE TITL E AND SCREEN CL ASS VIEWS

page_view 21K

session_start 9.4K

�rst_visit 6.1K

dwa___spent_over_o… 2.2K

click 1.8K

user_engagement 1.5K

scroll 1.3K

EVENT NAME EVENT COUNT

dwa___spent_over_o… 2.2K

toilet_rebate_view 619

Grass_Removal_Pag… 319

Washing_Machine_P… 221

Smart_Controller_Pa… 176

Nozzle_Rebate_Page… 48

EVENT NAME CONVERSIONS ITEM NAME ITEMS PURCHA…

Add comparison

Reports snapshot

A All Users Custom Feb 1 - Feb 29, 2024

https://analytics.google.com/analytics/web/?authuser=0&hl=en_US&utm_source=pdfReportLink#/p297056070/reports/dashboard?params=_u..nav%3Dmaui%26_u.comparisonOption%3Ddisabled%26_u.date00%3D20240201%26_u.date01%3D20240229&r=reporting-hub
https://www.google.com/analytics/?hl=en-US
https://www.google.com/analytics/tos.html?hl=en-US
https://www.google.com/policies/privacy/?hl=en-US


Desert Water Agency Facebook & Instagram Analytics February 2024 
  

 

 
 



Desert Water Agency Facebook & Instagram Analytics February 2024 
  

 

 

 



Desert Water Agency Facebook & Instagram Analytics February 2024 
  

 



 

 

 



Desert Water Agency Twitter Analytics February 2024 

 

 



 

 



9627 
 

 
 

Desert Water Agency Regular Board Meeting Minutes 03/05/24 
  

 MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING 
OF THE 

DESERT WATER AGENCY 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 
March 5, 2024 

 
 

 Board:                        Paul Ortega, President                                                      
                                  Jeff Bowman, Vice President 
                                  Kristin Bloomer, Director 
                                  Gerald McKenna, Secretary-Treasurer                         
                                   Steve Grasha, Director                                                     
          
DWA Staff: Steve Johnson, General Manager 
 David Tate, Assistant General Manager 
 Esther Saenz, Finance Director  
 Kris Hopping, Human Resources Director                                     
 Sylvia Baca, Asst. Secretary of the Board  
 Jamie Hoffman, Senior Admin. Assistant 
 Eddie Gonzalez, Facilities & Safety Officer 
 Sarah Rapolla, Sr. Water Resources Specialist 
  
Consultants via  Mike Riddell, Best Best & Krieger 
Teleconference: Ashley Metzger, Regional Government Services   
                        

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 President Ortega opened the meeting at 8:00 a.m. and asked 
Vice President Bowman to lead the Pledge of Allegiance. 
  

 President Ortega called upon Senior Administrative Assistant 
Hoffman to conduct the roll call: 
 

 Present: Grasha, Bloomer, McKenna, Bowman, Ortega 
  
 President Ortega opened the meeting for public comment for 
items not listed on the Agenda.  
  
 There was no one from the public wishing to address the Board 
for items not listed on the Agenda. 
 
  President Ortega opened the meeting for public comment for 
items listed on the Agenda. 
 

  There was no one from the public wishing to address the Board 
for items listed on the Agenda. 
 
 

Pledge of Allegiance 
 
 
 
Roll Call 
 
 
 
 
 
Public Comment on 
Items Not Listed on 
the Agenda 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Public Comment on 
Items Listed on the 
Agenda 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 6-C 



9628 
 

 
 

Desert Water Agency Regular Board Meeting Minutes 03/05/24 
  

  President Ortega called for approval of the Consent Calendar. 
He noted that Consent Calendar Items 6-A through 6-E are expected to be 
routine and to be acted upon by the Board of Directors at one time without 
discussion. If any Board member requests that an item be removed from the 
consent calendar, it will be removed so that it may be presented separately. 
 

A. Approve Minutes of the February 20, 2024 Regular Board Meeting 
B. Receive and File – Minutes of the February 29, 2024 Executive 

Committee Meeting 
C. Receive and File – Water Use Reduction Figures for January 2024 
D. Receive and File Memo on February 15, 2024 State Water 

Contractors’ Meeting 
E. Request Authorization to Continue Emergency Repair Work at DWA 

Facilities Under Reso. No. 1312 
  

  Director Grasha moved for approval of Consent Calendar Items 
6A through 6E. After a second by Director Bloomer, the motion carried by 
the following roll call vote: 
    

 AYES:  Grasha, Bloomer, McKenna, Bowman, Ortega 
 NOES:  None 
 ABSENT: None 
 ABSTAIN: None 
 
 Human Resources Director Hopping presented the staff report. 
 

 Discussion between Board and Staff ensued on the proposed 
adoption of the resolution and how it will affect the Agency in the coming 
years. 
 

 Director Grasha moved for Adoption of Resolution No. 1321 
adopting a retiree medical benefit for employees of Desert Water Agency hired 
after May 1, 2007. After a second from Director Bloomer, the motion carried 
by the following roll call vote: 
    

 AYES:  Grasha, Bloomer, McKenna, Bowman, Ortega 
 NOES:  None 
 ABSENT: None 
 ABSTAIN: None 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Approval of the 
Consent Calendar 
 
A. Approve Minutes of 

2/20/24 Regular 
Board Mtg. 

B. Receive & File 
Minutes of the 
2/29/24 Executive 
Comm. Mtg. 

C. Receive & File 
Water Use 
Reduction Figures 
for January 2024 

D. Receive & File 
Memo on 2/15/24 
State Water 
Contractors’ 
Meeting 

E. Request 
Authorization to 
Continue 
Emergency Repair 
Work at DWA 
Facilities Under 
Reso. No. 1312 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Action Items: 
7A- Request Adoption 
of Resolution No. 1321 
Adopting a Retiree 
Medical Benefit for 
Employees of DWA 
Hired after 5/1/2007 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



9629 
 

 
 

Desert Water Agency Regular Board Meeting Minutes 03/05/24 
  

 Human Resources Director Hopping presented the staff report. 
 
   In response to Director Grasha, Human Resources Director 
Hopping stated that the Agency conducts a salary survey on the General 
Manager’s position annually. 
 
 Director Bloomer moved to accept and adopt the revised Salary 
Classification listing and Salary Chart as presented. After a second by Vice 
President Bowman, the motion carried by the following roll call vote: 
    

 AYES:  Grasha, Bloomer, McKenna, Bowman, Ortega 
 NOES:  None 
 ABSENT: None 
 ABSTAIN: None 
 
 
 Senior Water Resources Specialist Rapolla presented the staff 
report. 
  

 Director Bloomer moved to authorize the General Manager to 
enter into Agreement No. 0049 with the Department of Water Resources 
(DWR) for construction, development, operation, and maintenance of water 
quality monitoring wells in the Indio and Mission Creek Subbasins. After a 
second by Secretary-Treasurer McKenna, the motion carried by the following 
roll call vote: 
    

 AYES:  Grasha, Bloomer, McKenna, Bowman, Ortega 
 NOES:  None 
 ABSENT: None 
 ABSTAIN: None 
 
 Secretary-Treasurer McKenna provided the financial highlights 
for January 2024. 
    
 General Manager Johnson provided an update on Agency 
operations for the past several weeks.  
  
 Director Grasha noted his attendance at the February 21-23 UWI 
Conference, the February 27 CVWD Board meeting, the February 28 
Conservation & Public Affairs Committee meeting, and the February 29 
AWWA Roundtable and Executive Committee meeting. 
  

 Director Bloomer noted her attendance at the February 21 Tribal 
Mediation, the February 21-23 UWI Conference, and the February 26-29 
ACWA Conference in Washington, D.C. 
 

Action Items: 
(Cont.) 
 
7B- Request Adoption 
of Revised Position 
Classification & Salary 
Chart Dated February 
2024 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7C- Request 
Authorization for GM 
to Enter into 
Agreement No. 0049 
with the DWR for 
Construction, 
Development, 
Operation, and 
Maintenance of Water 
Quality Monitoring 
Wells in the Indio and 
Mission Creek 
Subbasins 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Secretary-Treasurer’s 
Report (January 
2024) 
 
 
General Manager’s 
Report 
 
 
Directors Reports on 
Mtgs/Events Attended 
on Behalf of the 
Agency 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



9630 
 

 
 

Desert Water Agency Regular Board Meeting Minutes 03/05/24 
  

 Secretary-Treasurer McKenna noted his attendance at the 
February 20 MSWD Board meeting, the February 21-23 UWI Conference, and 
the February 26-29 ACWA Conference in Washington, D.C. 
 

 Vice President Bowman noted his attendance at the February 21 
Tribal Mediation, and the February 28 Agua Caliente Water Authority 
meeting. 
 

 President Ortega noted his attendance at the February 21-23 
UWI Conference, the February 28 Conservation & Public Affairs Committee 
meeting, the February 29 Executive Committee meeting, and the March 1 
ACWA Region 9 meeting. 
  

 Director Grasha noted the upcoming April 12 Region 9 meeting 
and tour and went on to thank staff on a job well done presenting at the last 
MSWD meeting. 
 

 Director Bloomer noted that she will not be at the upcoming 
April 2 Board meeting. 
 

 Secretary-Treasurer McKenna noted that the conservation 
percentages are state mandated. He went on to express his interest in offering 
water testing for our customers to provide them with more confidence in 
drinking our tap water. 
 

 President Ortega welcomed General Manager Johnson and 
Assistant General Manager Tate on their first official Board meeting in their 
new roles. 
 
 At 9:40 a.m., President Ortega convened into Closed Session for 
the purpose of Conference with Legal Counsel, (A)  Existing Litigation, 
Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9 (d) (1), Mission Springs Water 
District vs. Desert Water Agency;  (B) Existing Litigation, Pursuant to 
Government Code Section 54956.9 (d) (1), AT&T vs. County of Riverside; 
(C) Conference with Legal Counsel, Possible Intervention in Existing 
Litigation, Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9 (d) (4), Southern 
California Edison vs. California State Board of Equalization, et al; (D) 
Existing Litigation, Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9 (d) (1), 
Agua Caliente Band of Cahuilla Indians vs. Coachella Valley Water District, 
et al (Two Cases), (E) Public Employment, Pursuant to Government Code 
Section 54957, Unrepresented Employee: General Manager, and (F) 
Conference with Real Property Negotiators, pursuant to Government Code 
Section 54956.8 Property: APN# 680-180-029, Agency Negotiators: Steve 
Johnson, General Manager and David Tate, Assistant General Manager, 
Negotiating Parties: Desert Water Agency and The Palm Springs Surf Club, 
Under Negotiations: Possible Easement Agreement. 
 
 

Directors Reports on 
Mtgs/Events Attended 
on Behalf of the 
Agency 
(Cont.) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Directors 
Comments/Requests 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Closed Session: 
A. Existing Litigation – 
MSWD vs. DWA, et al 
B. Existing Litigation -  
AT&T vs. County of 
Riverside 
C. Possible 
Intervention in Existing 
Litigation – So. Cal. 
Edison vs. CA State 
Board of Equalization, 
et al  
D. Existing Litigation – 
ACBCI vs. CVWD, et 
al. (2 Cases) 
E.  Public Employment 
– Unrepresented 
Employee: General 
Manager 
F. Conference with 
Real Property 
Negotiators – Pursuant 
to Government Code 
Section 54956.8 
APN# 680-180-029 
 
 



9631 
 

 
 

Desert Water Agency Regular Board Meeting Minutes 03/05/24 
  

  At 10:23 a.m., President Ortega reconvened the meeting into 
open session and announced there was no reportable action. 
 

  In the absence of any further business, President Ortega 
adjourned the meeting at 10:24 a.m. 
 
_________________________ 
Sylvia Baca, MMC 
Assistant Secretary of the Board 

Reconvene – No 
Reportable Action 
 
 
Adjournment  
 
 
 

 



6-D 

X:\Sylvia\Board - Everything\Board - Committee Meetings\2024 Committee Meetings\031424 Executive Comm Minutes.docx 
 

 
Executive Committee Meeting Minutes 

March 14, 2024 
 

Directors Present:  Paul Ortega, Gerald McKenna 
Staff Present:   Steve Johnson, David Tate, Esther Saenz,  

Sylvia Baca, Jamie Hoffman 
         
  
1. Call to Order 
 
2. Public Comments  
 None 
    
3. Discussion Items 
 

A. Review Agenda for March 19, 2024 Board Meeting 
The proposed agenda for the March 19, 2024 meeting was reviewed. 
 

B. Expense Reports 
The January and February expense reports were reviewed. 
 

C. March 29 Riverside County Water Task Force Event 
Staff provided the Committee with information on the upcoming virtual event. The 
Committee requested this item be placed on the upcoming Board agenda for 
discussion. 

 
D. 2024 Board Conference Schedule Update 

Staff provided the Committee with updated agendas/schedules. The Committee 
approved travel dates for the following: ACWA Legislative Symposium, April CSDA 
Leadership Academy, and CSDA Legislative Days. 
 
 

Adjourn 



6-E 

X:\Sylvia\Board - Everything\Board - Staff Reports\Bd Memos - David Tate\2024\031924 Item 6E Reaffirm Reso 1312 Emergency Repair Work staff report.docx 

STAFF REPORT 
TO 

DESERT WATER AGENCY 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 
MARCH 19, 2024 

 
RE:  REQUEST BOARD AUTHORIZATION TO CONTINUE 

EMERGENCY REPAIR WORK AT DWA FACILITIES UNDER 
RESOLUTION NO. 1312  

 
On September 19, 2023, the Board adopted Resolution No. 1312 declaring a local 
emergency that requires emergency repairs to Agency facilities due to Tropical Storm 
Hilary. As required by the resolution, the following is an update on the repairs:  
 
The following repair work has been done: 
 
 Whitewater Headworks: 

• Graded road into site. 
• Repaired 4” pump and re-established water supply to customers, at reduced 

delivery flow rate. 
• Cleaned out concrete settling structure and transmission main. 
• Replaced the fence surrounding the settling structure. 
• Working with FEMA on disaster relief. 

 
Mission Creek Groundwater Replenishment Facility: 
• Completed aerial survey and CAD mapping of work zone area. 
• Installed K-Rail barriers to secure the site from vehicular traffic. 
• Prepared grading plan for the removal of the sediment in the debris basin. 
• 2/20/2024 Board authorization to enter into grading contract with Weaver 

Grading. 
• Scheduling grading contractor to relocate sediment to widen existing levee and 

install rip-rap slope protection. 
• Working with FEMA on disaster relief. 

 
The General Manager has determined that the damage to Agency facilities warrants the 
continuation of work under a Local Emergency, as outlined in Resolution No. 1312. 
 
Fiscal Impact:  
The declaration of work under a Local Emergency does not have a fiscal impact, rather, 
it allows the Agency to expedite repairs according to the Uniform Public Construction Cost 
Accounting Act.  
 
Legal Review: 
N/A 
 
Recommendation: 
Staff recommends, as required by Resolution No. 1312, the Board’s concurrence that the 
continued work to repair Agency facilities shall occur under the Board’s declaration of a 
Local Emergency.  



7-A 

X:\Sylvia\Board - Everything\Board - Staff Reports\Bd Memos - Steve\2024\031924 Item 7A Customer appeal El Bostany staff report.docx 
 

 
STAFF REPORT 

TO 
DESERT WATER AGENCY  
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 
MARCH 19, 2024 

 
RE: CUSTOMER APPEAL – BELAL EL BOSTANY  
 
On December 17, 2019, the Board of Directors adopted Resolution No. 1224 “Policy on 
Discontinuation of Residential Water Service for Nonpayment”, which became effective 
on February 1, 2020. This resolution was in accordance with Senate Bill 998 that was 
adopted by the California Legislature in 2018, which imposes new and expanded 
customer protections regarding discontinuation of residential water service for 
nonpayment and related matters. 
 
Section 5 of Resolution No. 1224 addresses the procedures to contest or appeal a bill, in 
particular Section 5.3 (Appeal to Board of Directors). 
 

“Any customer whose timely complaint or request for an investigation pursuant to 
this Section 5 has resulted in an adverse determination by the Agency may appeal 
the determination to the Board of Directors by filing a written notice of appeal with 
the Agency Secretary within ten (10) business days of the Agency’s mailing of its 
determination. Upon receiving the notice of appeal, the Agency Secretary will set 
the matter to be heard at an upcoming Board meeting and mail the customer 
written notice of the time and place of the hearing at least ten (10) days before the 
meeting. The decision of the Board shall be final.” 

 
The appellant, Belal El Bostany is appealing his current water bill that includes two fees 
for cutting off a lock on a closed account and a meter reset fee for the reason(s) listed: 
 

1. Because this is a construction site, he was not aware that the workers at the site 
had cut the locks twice. 

2. Oversite and his accountant did not receive the water bills.  
 
Appeal Summary/Procedures: 
 

1. 02/21/23 – Account was turned off and locked off for non-payment.  
2. 03/06/23 – Account was closed. 
3. 08/02/23 – Field Services found lock cut and meter turned on (lock cutting fee of 

$166 applied to account). Field Service Rep turns the meter off and installs a new 
lock.  

4. 10/03/23 – Field Services found lock cut and meter turned on. Field Service Rep 
pulls meter and installs service stop plug. (lock cutting fee of $166 and meter reset 
fee of $210 applied to account).  



X:\Sylvia\Board - Everything\Board - Staff Reports\Bd Memos - Steve\2024\031924 Item 7A Customer appeal El Bostany staff report.docx 

5. 02/20/24– Customer files dispute with DWA for two lock cutting fees and meter 
reset fee. 

6. 02/21/24 – Water bill Dispute Denial Letter mailed to customer.  
7. 02/29/24 – Customer files official appeal notification. 
8. Staff has provided the Board with the correspondence for this appeal. 

(Attachment 1).  
9. Staff records of the account (Attachment 2). 
10. The appellant, if in attendance, will be invited by the Board President to speak 

concerning the appeal. 
11. After hearing the appellant, the Board will decide whether to grant or deny the 

appeal. 
  

 
Fiscal Impact: 
If the Board decides to deny appeal, there will be no fiscal impact. If the Board decides to 
grant the appeal, the Agency may remove the three fees from the account in the amount 
of $542.  
 
Legal Review: 
N/A 
 
Staff Recommendation: 
Based on the actions discovered at the property, Staff recommends that the Board of 
Directors deny the appeal of Belal El Bostany. 
 
Attachments: 
Attachment #1 – Appeal form  
Attachment #2 – Account Records  
 
 
 
 
 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



























7-B 

X:\Sylvia\Board - Everything\Board - Staff Reports\Bd Memos - Reeb\2024\031924 Item 7B Adopt Bill Positions Reeb legislative report staff report.docx 

 
 

STAFF REPORT 
TO 

DESERT WATER AGENCY  
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 
MARCH 19, 2024 

 
RE: REQUEST ADOPTION OF BILL POSITION RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
 
The attached legislative packet provides a description of legislation and proposed 
positions, which are tied to DWA’s recently adopted Legislative and Regulatory Policy 
Platform. The Legislative Committee has reviewed the packet.  
 
Mr. Reeb will be attending today’s meeting and will provide a brief overview of the 
recommendations. 
 
Fiscal Impact:  
None 
 
Legal Review: 
N/A 
 
Recommendation: 
Staff recommends that the Board of Directors review and adopt positions on the bills 
included in the packet that Mr. Reeb prepared. 
 
 
Attachments:  
 
Attachment #1 – Recommended State Bill Positions  
 

 

 

 

  

 

  



Desert Water Agency
2023 - 2024 Legislative Session, Second Year

 

  AB 805 (Arambula D)   Sewer service: disadvantaged communities.
  Current Text: Amended: 1/22/2024   html   pdf
  Introduced: 2/13/2023
  Last Amend: 1/22/2024
  Status: 1/30/2024-Read third time. Urgency clause adopted. Passed. Ordered to the Senate. (Ayes 76.

Noes 0.). In Senate. Read first time. To Com. on RLS. for assignment.
  Is Urgency: Y
  Is Fiscal: Y
  Location: 1/30/2024-S. RLS.
  Summary: Under current law, the State Water Resources Control Board and the 9 California regional

water quality control boards regulate water quality in accordance with the Porter-Cologne Water
Quality Control Act and the federal Clean Water Act. Current law authorizes a regional board to order
the provision of sewer service by a receiving sewer system, as defined, to a disadvantaged community
served by an inadequate onsite sewage treatment system, as defined. This bill would authorize the
state board to require a sewer service provider to contract with an administrator designated or
approved by the state board for administrative, technical, operational, legal, or managerial services to
assist a designated sewer system with the provision of adequate sewer service, as defined. The bill
would also authorize the state board to order a designated sewer system to accept those services,
including full management and control of all aspects of the designated sewer system, from an
administrator. The bill would define “designated sewer system” for these purposes as a sewer system
that serves a disadvantaged community and that the state board finds to be either an inadequate
sewage treatment system or a sewer system that has demonstrated difficulty in maintaining technical,
managerial, and financial capacity to prevent fraud and mismanagement, or a sewer system that
voluntarily accepts financial assistance for the provision of adequate sewer service.

    Notes:  AB 685 (Eng, Statutes of 2012) declares that it is the established policy of the state that every
human being has the right to safe, clean, affordable, and accessible water adequate for human
consumption, cooking, and sanitary purposes. 

California Health and Safety Code Section 116682 authorizes the SWRCB, where a public water
system or a state small water system within a disadvantaged community, consistently fails to provide
an adequate supply of safe drinking water, to order consolidation with a receiving water system.
Current law provides that the consolidation may be physical or operational; and authorizes the
SWRCB to contract with an administrator to provide administrative and managerial services to a
designated public water system to assist with the provision of an adequate and affordable supply of
safe drinking water. 

This bill was gutted and amended on January 22 to authorize the State Water Board to require a
sewer service provider to contract with an administrator designated or approved by the state board to
ensure that residents of disadvantaged communities receive adequate sewer service. The bill would
also authorize the Board to use funds in the State Water Pollution Cleanup and Abatement Account
(Abatement Account) to issue grants to appointed administrators to cover their costs. Costs to repair
infrastructure are not allowable expenditures from this account. 

The bill defines “adequate sewer service” to mean sanitary sewer service provided by a sewer service
provider that does not have the potential to cause a violation of water quality objectives, impair
present or future beneficial uses of water, cause pollution, nuisance, or contamination of waters of the
state, or unreasonably degrade the waters of the state. 

“Designated sewer system” means a sewer system that serves a disadvantaged community and that
the state board finds to be either an inadequate sewage treatment system or a sewer system that
has demonstrated difficulty in maintaining technical, managerial, and financial capacity to prevent fraud
and mismanagement. “Designated sewer system” also includes a voluntary participant. 

This legislation somewhat mirrors the State Water Board’s authority to appoint administrators to
failing water systems, but this new authority regarding sewer systems could be considered premature
as the State Water Board is currently conducting a wastewater needs assessment intended to assess
wastewater infrastructure conditions in the state to use that data to develop a comprehensive risk
framework to prioritize funding, expected to be completed in 2027. This bill would authorize a funding
source prior to understanding infrastructure and funding needs. This legislation would provide more
limited authority to the state board regarding an inadequate sewage treatment system as compared
to a failing public water system in that the state board would not be authorized to force a
consolidation under this legislation. 

The Community Water Center, an environmental and social justice NGO, is the sponsor of this
legislation. ACWA has taken a “Not Favor” position on the bill, with California Association of Sanitation

Page 1/19

https://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=LIy6puDSgydhQFezv4TqPk4jiZlwqnWt%2FJpdEssNF4cIagEVqvX02MxqoPBKSEWa
https://a31.asmdc.org/
http://ct3k1.capitoltrack.com/Bills/23Bills%5Casm%5Cab_0801-0850%5Cab_805_97_A_bill.htm
http://ct3k1.capitoltrack.com/Bills/23Bills%5Casm%5Cab_0801-0850%5Cab_805_97_A_bill.pdf


Agencies leading opposition efforts. The bill is an urgency measure requiring 2/3 vote for passage. This
legislation would authorize the state board to require a sewer service provider to contract with an
administrator designated or approved by the state board for administrative, technical, operational,
legal, or managerial services, or any combination of those services, to assist the designated sewer
system with the provision of adequate sewer service. It is unlikely that this legislation would impact
the Agency given that the Agency only owns and operates a sewerage collection system and does not
own or operate treatment works and other sanitary disposal systems. 

Desert Water Agency Legislative & Regulatory Platform: Policy Directive 1, Policy Directive 4 

Current Position: Not Yet Considered 

Recommended Position: Watch
 

  AB 1785 (Pacheco D)   California Public Records Act.
  Current Text: Introduced: 1/3/2024   html   pdf
  Introduced: 1/3/2024
  Status: 1/16/2024-Referred to Com. on JUD.
  Is Urgency: N
  Is Fiscal: Y
  Location: 1/16/2024-A. JUD.
  Summary: The California Public Records Act requires state and local agencies to make their records

available for public inspection, unless an exemption from disclosure applies. The act prohibits a state or
local agency from posting the home address or telephone number of any elected or appointed official
on the internet without first obtaining the written permission of that individual. This bill would define
“home address,” for purposes of the above provision, to include an assessor’s parcel number, which
may be converted to a physical address through reference to other information made available online
by the state or local agency.

    Notes:  The California Public Records Act requires state and local agencies to make their records
available for public inspection, unless an exemption from disclosure applies. The act prohibits a state
or local agency from posting the home address or telephone number of any elected or appointed
official on the internet without first obtaining the written permission of that individual. 

This bill would define “home address” to include an assessor’s parcel number, which may be converted
to a physical address through reference to other information made available online by the state or
local agency. This bill will ensure the privacy of an elected or appointed official can be properly
maintained. 

Desert Water Agency Legislative & Regulatory Platform: Policy Directive 3 

Current Position: Not Yet Considered 

Recommended Position: Favor
 

  AB 1820 (Schiavo D)   Housing development projects: applications: fees and exactions.
  Current Text: Amended: 2/20/2024   html   pdf
  Introduced: 1/11/2024
  Last Amend: 2/20/2024
  Status: 2/21/2024-Re-referred to Com. on H. & C.D.
  Is Urgency: N
  Is Fiscal: Y
  Location: 1/29/2024-A. H. & C.D.
  Summary: Current law requires a housing development project be subject only to the ordinances,

policies, and standards adopted and in effect when the preliminary application was submitted. This bill
would authorize a development proponent that submits a preliminary application for a housing
development project to request a preliminary fee and exaction estimate, as defined, and would require
the local agency to provide the estimate within 10 business days of the submission of the preliminary
application.

    Notes:  Current law requires a city or county to deem an applicant for a housing development project
to have submitted a preliminary application upon providing specified information about the proposed
project to the city or county from which approval for the project is being sought. Current law requires
a public agency that receives an application for a development project to, within 30 calendar days,
determine in writing whether the application is complete and immediately transmit its determination to
the applicant for the development project. 

Current law requires a city, county, or special district that has an internet website to make specified
information available on its internet website, including a current schedule of fees, exactions,

Page 2/19

https://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=IwLr%2F8koL%2B0r22%2FyJ1YSMbpXHzlhhlVbgBHjtfuO6s2PdL0EhI2AueVz2%2BMhWsMi
https://a64.asmdc.org/
http://ct3k1.capitoltrack.com/Bills/23Bills%5Casm%5Cab_1751-1800%5Cab_1785_99_I_bill.htm
http://ct3k1.capitoltrack.com/Bills/23Bills%5Casm%5Cab_1751-1800%5Cab_1785_99_I_bill.pdf
https://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=t24Sy7lSWOvwJHe5goYHcRB8x5o%2FJ9MRssICDjnWFp75q%2B%2FSDlxbChho76cDgACU
https://a40.asmdc.org/
http://ct3k1.capitoltrack.com/Bills/23Bills%5Casm%5Cab_1801-1850%5Cab_1820_98_A_bill.htm
http://ct3k1.capitoltrack.com/Bills/23Bills%5Casm%5Cab_1801-1850%5Cab_1820_98_A_bill.pdf


affordability requirements it has imposed that are applicable to a proposed housing development
project, and an archive of impact fee nexus studies, cost of service studies, or equivalent, conducted
by that city, county, or special district on or after January 1, 2018. Current law requires a city or county
to request from a development proponent, upon issuance of a certificate of occupancy or the final
inspection, whichever occurs last, the total amount of fees and exactions associated with the project
for which the certificate was issued. 

This bill would authorize a development proponent to request for a preliminary fee and exaction
estimate when submitting a preliminary application for a housing development project, and would
require the local agency to provide the estimate within 10 business days of the submission of the
preliminary application. The bill would also require a public agency that determines an application for a
housing development project is complete to provide the development proponent with an itemized list
and total sum amount of all fees and exactions that will apply to the project within 10 days of the
above-described determination of completeness transmitted to the applicant. 

As amended on February 20, the bill would additionally clarify that its provisions are not to be
construed as imposing any obligation on any entity, including a development proponent, other than a
city, county, or special district, and require a request from the city or county for the total amount of
fees and exactions associated with a proposed housing development project to clearly state that the
request does not create any obligation to respond, and that the development proponent will not be
subjected to any consequences for not responding or for the content of a response. 

The bill would include within the definition of a “fee,” Chapter 7 of the Mitigation Fee Act, which
includes fees for water and sewer connections, and capacity charges. 

Connection and capacity fees are based on the cost of providing service, including various factors,
such as cost of infrastructure to service new development and procuring water supplies. Water and
wastewater agencies do not possess land use authority and do not receive the applications for
housing development projects, as the applications are submitted to the city or county; nor do they
determine if the application is complete. In addition, the preliminary applications and applications for
housing developments submitted to cities and counties would not provide the information special
districts would need to calculate the water or sewer connection fees and capacity charges. Typically,
fees for water or sewer connections and capacity charges are assessed upon receiving an application
for a new service connection. Providing a final cost of the fees once an application is deemed complete
would not be feasible. Agencies with land use authority that provide utility services may be better
equipped to provide an estimate when preliminary applications are submitted. However, as noted
above, these applications lack the information to allow agencies to calculate connection and capacity
fees, likely making the bill problematic even for these agencies. 

The Agency should consider requesting the bill be amended to the delete “special districts” from the
provisions of the bill, as well as Chapter 7 (commencing with Section 66012) of the Mitigation Fee Act
from the definition of “fee”. 

Desert Water Agency Legislative & Regulatory Platform: Policy Directive 1, Policy Directive 2, Policy
Directive 3, Policy Directive 4 

Current Position: Not Yet Considered 

Recommended Position: Oppose Unless Amended 
 

  AB 1827 (Papan D)   Local government: fees and charges: water: higher-consumptive water parcels.
  Current Text: Introduced: 1/12/2024   html   pdf
  Introduced: 1/12/2024
  Status: 1/29/2024-Referred to Com. on L. GOV.
  Is Urgency: N
  Is Fiscal: N
  Location: 1/29/2024-A. L. GOV.
  Summary: The California Constitution specifies various requirements with respect to the levying of

assessments and property-related fees and charges by a local agency, including requiring that the
local agency provide public notice and a majority protest procedure in the case of assessments and
submit property-related fees and charges for approval by property owners subject to the fee or charge
or the electorate residing in the affected area following a public hearing. This bill would provide that
the fees or charges for property-related water service imposed or increased, as specified, may include
the incrementally higher costs of water service due to specified factors, including the higher water
usage demand of parcels. The bill would provide that the costs associated with higher water usage
demands, the maximum potential water use, or a projected peak water usage demand may be
allocated using any method that reasonably assesses the water service provider’s cost of serving
those parcels that are increasing potential water usage demand, maximum potential water use, or
project peak water use demand.

Page 3/19

https://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=2bmabKxYuv7G5VCqNKwxUS8Ox4JxSQAze7tM%2BIG7SJKOEMuR3lk6Sx0Ae5x0AvBA
https://a21.asmdc.org/
http://ct3k1.capitoltrack.com/Bills/23Bills%5Casm%5Cab_1801-1850%5Cab_1827_99_I_bill.htm
http://ct3k1.capitoltrack.com/Bills/23Bills%5Casm%5Cab_1801-1850%5Cab_1827_99_I_bill.pdf


    Notes:  The Coastkeepers Alliance is the sponsor of this legislation. The Coastkeepers Alliance
sponsored AB 755 from 2023 by the same author, which Governor Newsom signed into law. AB 755
requires an urban retail water supplier to conduct a water usage demand analysis as part of a cost-of
service analysis conducted to set fees and charges for water service that are consistent with
applicable law. The new law requires the supplier to identify, within the water usage demand analysis,
the costs of water service for the highest users incurred by the supplier, and the average annual
volume of water delivered to high water users. The new law also requires the costs of water service
for the highest users and the average annual volume of water delivered to high water users to be
made publicly available by posting the information in the supplier’s cost-of-service analysis. By
requiring a higher level of service of public entities, the bill imposed a state-mandated local program.
The new law specifies that if the Commission on State Mandates determines that it contains costs
mandated by the state, reimbursement to local agencies and school districts for those costs shall be
made pursuant to Part 7 (commencing with Section 17500) of Division 4 of Title 2 of the Government
Code. 

The California Constitution specifies various requirements with respect to the levying of assessments
and property-related fees and charges by a local agency. Proposition 218, enacted in November 1996,
amended the California Constitution by placing restrictions on how local agencies use fees, charges, or
special assessments ("property-related services") to cover the cost of providing services, including for
water service. In order to assess a fee, water agencies must ensure it meets five standards under
Proposition 218: that a fee or charge (1) not exceed the cost of providing the service for which it is
charged or (2) be used for any purpose other than that for which it is charged; (3) that a fee not
exceed the proportional cost of providing a service to an individual property; (4) that no fee be
imposed for a service unless that service is 
actually used by or available to a property owner; and (5) that no fee or charge may be imposed for
general governmental services that are available to the public in the same manner as it is to property
owners. 

To comply with Proposition 218, water agencies have to undertake a detailed cost study to establish
the basis upon which the amount of a proposed fee or charge is calculated, notify customers of a
proposed fee or charge, and hold a public hearing on the proposed fee or charge. If a majority of the
property owners that will be subject to the proposed fee or charge protest the fee or charge, a local
agency may not impose the fee or charge. Proposition 26, enacted in November 2010, places
additional burdens on local agencies by broadening the definition of "tax" as "any levy, charge, or
exaction of any kind" except for charges imposed to confer a specific benefit or service to the payer. It
also places the burden of proof on a local agency to demonstrate that a charge is not greater than the
cost of providing the service for which it is charged in the event of a challenge. 

The bill is a response to court ruling related to budget based rates. A 2015 California Court of Appeal,
Fourth District, decision held that the City of San Juan Capistrano’s (“City”) tiered water rate was
unconstitutional and a violation of California’s Proposition 218. The court’s decision in Capistrano
Taxpayers Association, Inc. v. City of San Juan Capistrano (“Decision”) largely eliminated reliance on a
tiered rate structure suppliers have come to rely on to curtail excess water usage. Suppliers using a
tiered water rate schedule need to demonstrate that those rates are based on the actual cost of 
providing service to each tier. The decision noted that a public agency has the burden to prove
compliance with Proposition 218 when establishing or increasing a fee. The court stated that the City
could impose tiered rates based on usage levels if it could show that such rates correlated to the
actual cost of providing water at those tiered levels. The court noted that the City did not “try to
calculate the actual costs of service for the various tiers.” The California Supreme Court denied a 
petition to depublish the decision. 

The Association of California Water Agencies (ACWA) opposed AB 755 arguing that it conflicts with the
"Making Conservation a Way of Life" legislation [AB 1668 (Friedman) and SB 606 (Hertzberg)] from
2018 and increases legal risk for water systems. ACWA asserted that the bill "would require water
systems to include hypotheticals into a [cost-of-service analysis], introducing an admission of
uncertainty into their rate analyses, which could in turn be used to challenge rates under Prop. 218.
This problem would be compounded if the system introduced or modified efficiency goals after the
[cost-of-service analysis] was completed or adopted. This will ultimately contribute to greater litigation
risk and overall revenue uncertainty which will not help a system achieve increased water
conservation goals." 

ACWA supports this legislation. 

This legislation would amend the Proposition 218 Implementation Act, which was enacted soon after
the ballot measure was approved by state voters in 1996. The statutory provisions may interpret the
proposition to provide greater clarity regarding its implementation, but the statutory provisions cannot
amend or alter the constitutional language or requirements. This legislation provides statutory
authority for a retail water supplier to impose or increase fees or charges for property-related water
service that include the incrementally higher costs of water service due to any of the following: (1) The
higher water usage demand of parcels, (2) The maximum potential water use of parcels, (3) Projected 

Page 4/19



peak water usage, or (4) Any combination of paragraphs (1) to (3), inclusive. This legislation provides
that the costs associated with higher water usage demands, the maximum potential water use, or a
projected peak water usage demand may be allocated using any method that reasonably assesses
the water service provider’s cost of serving those parcels that are increasing potential water usage
demand, maximum potential water use, or project peak water use demand. This legislation, then,
seems to restate the holding in the City of San Juan Capistrano decision. The need for so doing is
unclear. 

Desert Water Agency Legislative & Regulatory Platform: Policy Directive 1, Policy Directive 3, Policy
Directive 4 

Current Position: Not Yet Considered 

Recommended Position: Watch
 

  AB 2153 (Lowenthal D)   California Public Records Act: public agency employees: notice requirements:
personnel and medical information.

  Current Text: Introduced: 2/6/2024   html   pdf
  Introduced: 2/6/2024
  Status: 2/20/2024-Referred to Com. on JUD.
  Is Urgency: N
  Is Fiscal: Y
  Location: 2/20/2024-A. JUD.
  Summary: The California Public Records Act requires public records to be open to inspection at all

times during the office hours of the state or local agency that retains those records, and provides that
every person has a right to inspect any public record, except as provided. Current law requires each
agency, upon a request for records, to determine within 10 days whether that request, in whole or in
part, seeks copies of disclosable public records in the agency’s possession and to promptly notify the
person making the request of its determination and reasons for that determination. Under current law,
the act generally does not require disclosure of personnel, medical, or similar files, the disclosure of
which would constitute an unwarranted invasion of personal privacy. Current law requires an agency, if
it determines a request seeks disclosable public records, to state the estimated date and time when
the records will be made available. Current law permits the prescribed time limits of the act to be
extended in unusual circumstances. In this connection, “unusual circumstances” include, among other
reasons, the need to search for and collect the requested records from field facilities or other
establishments separate from the office processing the request. This bill would require each agency,
upon receipt of a request for a copy of, or the inspection of, any personnel, medical, or similar records
of a public agency employee or any record that would disclose a public agency employee’s personal
identity in connection with the performance of that employee’s work duties, to promptly and prior to
the release of the records, provide written notice of the request to that public agency employee.

    Notes:  The California Public Records Act (CPRA) requires that all public agencies respond to requests
for documents by the public, unless an exemption applies. One such exemption is personnel records;
however, this exception is narrowly tailored to exempt only “[p]ersonnel, medical or similar files, the
disclosure of which would constitute an invasion of personal privacy and personnel records when, from
the facts of the particular case, the public agency can demonstrate that the public interest served by
not disclosing the record outweighs the public interest served by disclosure of the record.” (Cal. Gov’t
Code § 6254(c) and § 6255(a)) Thus, when a CPRA request seeks the disclosure of personnel files, the
responding agency may only refuse to provide records that fit into either of those exemptions. A public
agency therefore must perform an analysis to determine whether (1) the requested contents of the
personnel files implicate personal privacy, and (2) the invasion of privacy is unwarranted under the
circumstances. 

This bill would require each agency, upon receipt of a request for a copy of, or the inspection of, any
personnel, medical, or similar records of a public agency employee or any record that would disclose a
public agency employee’s personal identity in connection with the performance of that employee’s
work duties, to promptly and prior to the release of the records, provide written notice of the request
to that public agency employee. 

This bill would impose a new duty for the Agency, however our firm does not believe the impact on
Agency personnel in terms of the time required to comply with the requirement will be significant. Our
firm will monitor the progress of the legislation and bring amendments to the attention of Agency staff.

Desert Water Agency Legislative & Regulatory Platform: Policy Directive 3 

Current Position: Not Yet Considered 

Recommended Position: Watch
 

  AB 2257 (Wilson D)   Local government: property-related water and sewer fees and assessments:

Page 5/19

https://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=peXWkte%2BfIunkru00EexCcKPEujy%2Fm1zUGvYaIK2pjh%2FxlMpcPLqtvJyBn5qMCla
https://a69.asmdc.org/
http://ct3k1.capitoltrack.com/Bills/23Bills%5Casm%5Cab_2151-2200%5Cab_2153_99_I_bill.htm
http://ct3k1.capitoltrack.com/Bills/23Bills%5Casm%5Cab_2151-2200%5Cab_2153_99_I_bill.pdf
https://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=15LAUyCCPhROPtt2SDqD04V2%2FQiGF7rcEildSBwue%2FNBLpkR6EuTfUn1VMtHPvrB
https://a11.asmdc.org/


remedies.
  Current Text: Introduced: 2/8/2024   html   pdf
  Introduced: 2/8/2024
  Status: 2/26/2024-Referred to Coms. on JUD. and L. GOV.
  Is Urgency: N
  Is Fiscal: N
  Location: 2/26/2024-A. JUD.
  Summary: The California Constitution specifies various requirements with respect to the levying of

assessments and property-related fees and charges by a local agency. The California Constitution
includes a public notice and a majority protest procedure in the case of assessments and procedures
for submitting property-related fees and charges for approval by property owners subject to the fee or
charge or to the electorate residing in the affected area following a public hearing. Current law, known
as the Proposition 218 Omnibus Implementation Act, prescribes specific procedures and parameters for
local jurisdictions to comply with these requirements. This bill would prohibit, if a local agency complies
with specified procedures, a person or entity from bringing a judicial action or proceeding alleging
noncompliance with the constitutional provisions for any new, increased, or extended fee or
assessment, as defined, unless that person or entity has timely submitted to the local agency a
written objection to that fee or assessment that specifies the grounds for alleging noncompliance, as
specified.

    Notes:  The Association of California Water Agencies is the sponsor of this legislation. 

William T. Chisum and Andreas L. Booher, of Kronick Moskovitz Tiedeman & Girard, wrote a legal alert
regarding a 2019 California Supreme Court opinion in Plantier v. Ramona Municipal Water District,
addressing whether certain property owners had exhausted administrative remedies before litigating
a Proposition 218 challenge against a local public agency’s method for applying rates to provide a
property-related service. According to Chisum and Booher: 

"The Court held that where a property owner challenges the method by which the local agency applies
its rates to particular customers—but not the rates themselves—the owner may challenge the method
without first having participated in the Proposition 218 protest hearing called to raise the rates. The
District argued that Plaintiffs were barred from bringing suit because they had failed to exhaust their
administrative remedies by participating in a Proposition 218 protest hearing conducted to approve an
increase in the District’s rates per EDU. Consistent with its hearing notice, the District’s hearing
addressed only the proposed change in the per-EDU rates and not the methodology by which the
District calculated the number of EDUs for which each customer would be charged the new rates. The
District argued that Plaintiffs were able to raise their EDU-calculation challenges during the District’s
Proposition 218 hearing but failed to participate. 

"The trial court held for the District, finding that Proposition 218’s public protest hearing created an
unexhausted administrative remedy. The Court of Appeals reversed the trial court decision, holding
that Plaintiffs were not required to participate in the Proposition 218 protest hearing for raising per-
EDU rates in order to challenge the District’s method for assigning EDUs to customers. The appellate
court reasoned that changing the number of EDUs applied to commercial customers was different from
increasing the rate assigned to an EDU, which was the subject of the public hearing notice.
Accordingly, the appellate court reasoned that the District could not have changed its EDU-allocation
method at the rate hearing even if Plaintiffs had objected to the allocation method at the hearing. The
hearing was about raising per-EDU rates, not changing the allocation of EDUs to commercial
customers, the appellate court found. 

"In affirming the appellate court decision, the California Supreme Court concluded that Plaintiffs were
not challenging the District’s new per-EDU rates and, therefore, were not required to exhaust their
administrative remedies by participating in the Proposition 218 hearing on the proposed per-EDU rates
increase. The Court explained that while exhaustion of administrative remedies is generally required
before a claim can be validly brought before the courts, where the remedy is inadequate to resolve
the dispute, plaintiffs may be excused for failing to exhaust that remedy. The Court held that a remedy
is only adequate if it “establishes clearly defined machinery for the submission, evaluation, and
resolution of complaints by the aggrieved parties.” 

"The Court reasoned that even if rate protest hearings under Proposition 218 were considered an
administrative remedy, the District’s protest hearing would not have provided an adequate remedy for
the Plaintiffs’ challenge to the methodology for calculating the number of EDUs assigned to their
properties–because the hearing was limited to the per-EDU rate increase and did not encompass the
EDU calculation or allocation method. Due to that limited hearing scope, the Court found Plaintiffs could
not obtain an adequate remedy by participating." 

This legislation creates an “exhaustion of remedies” procedure for Proposition 218. The exhaustion of
remedies principle is a fundamental concept of administrative law governing the relationship between
agencies and courts. It requires individuals to raise concerns about proposed agency actions to the
agencies themselves, in the first instance, rather than to the courts. Proposition 218 does not provide

Page 6/19

http://ct3k1.capitoltrack.com/Bills/23Bills%5Casm%5Cab_2251-2300%5Cab_2257_99_I_bill.htm
http://ct3k1.capitoltrack.com/Bills/23Bills%5Casm%5Cab_2251-2300%5Cab_2257_99_I_bill.pdf


a requirement to exhaust administrative remedies as none are provided in the constitutional
provisions. Instead, property owners are provided an opportunity to protest the proposed imposition
of a property-related fee or charge. 

This legislation would amend the Proposition 218 Omnibus Implementation Act, which contains
statutory enactments intended to interpret Proposition 218. For example, subdivision (d) of section
53753 of the Government Code states: "At the time, date, and place stated in the notice mailed
pursuant to subdivision (b), the agency shall conduct a public hearing upon the proposed assessment.
At the public hearing, the agency shall consider all objections or protests, if any, to the proposed
assessment. At the public hearing, any person shall be permitted to present written or oral testimony.
The public hearing may be continued from time to time." Subdivision (e) of Section 4 (Article XIIID)
provides that the local agency "shall conduct a public hearing upon the proposed assessment not less
than 45 days after mailing the notice of the proposed assessment to record owners of each identified
parcel. At the public hearing, the agency shall consider all protests against the proposed assessment
and tabulate the ballots. The agency shall not impose an assessment if there is a majority protest. A
majority protest exists if, upon the conclusion of the hearing, ballots submitted in opposition to the
assessment exceed the ballots submitted in favor of the assessment. In tabulating the ballots, the
ballots shall be weighted according to the proportional financial obligation of the affected property." 

Subdivision (f) of Section 4 (Article XIIID) provides that in any legal action contesting the validity of any
assessment, the burden shall be on the agency to demonstrate that the property or properties in
question receive a special benefit over and above the benefits conferred on the public at large and
that the amount of any contested assessment is proportional to, and no greater than, the benefits
conferred on the property or properties in question. This legislation would bar a legal action contesting
the validity of any assessment unless the plaintiff submits a timely written objection prior to the close
of the protest hearing or ballot tabulation hearing, with certain exceptions. It is unclear whether the
proposed addition of a statutory procedural requirement interprets Proposition 218 or adds a
requirement to Proposition 218 without amending the constitutional provision itself. 

The benefit to local agencies and property owners provided by this legislation is that a clear process
will be established for local agencies to communicate an opportunity for property owners to submit
written objections to a proposed fee or charge through an administrative review process, provide
property owners the opportunity to identify concerns with the proposed fee or charge in a timely
manner, enable local agencies to correct deficiencies, if any, and hopefully avoid litigation following
governing body action regarding imposing or increasing property-related fees and charges. 

Desert Water Agency Legislative & Regulatory Platform: Policy Directive 1, Policy Directive 2, Policy
Directive 3 

Current Position: Not Yet Considered 

Recommended Position: Support
 

  AB 2626 (Dixon R)   Advanced Clean Fleets regulations: local governments.
  Current Text: Introduced: 2/14/2024   html   pdf
  Introduced: 2/14/2024
  Status: 3/4/2024-Referred to Coms. on TRANS. and NAT. RES.
  Is Urgency: N
  Is Fiscal: Y
  Location: 3/4/2024-A. TRANS.
  Summary: Current law requires the State Air Resources Board to adopt and implement motor vehicle

emission standards, in-use performance standards, and motor vehicle fuel specifications for the control
of air contaminants and sources of air pollution that the state board has found necessary, cost
effective, and technologically feasible. Pursuant to its authority, the state board has adopted the
Advanced Clean Fleets Regulation, which imposes various requirements for transitioning local, state,
and federal government fleets of medium- and heavy-duty trucks, other high-priority fleets of medium-
and heavy-duty trucks, and drayage trucks to zero-emission vehicles. The Advanced Clean Fleets
Regulation authorizes entities subject to the regulation to apply for exemptions from its requirements
under certain circumstances. This bill would extend the compliance dates for local government set forth
in the Advanced Clean Fleets Regulation by 10 years. The bill would prohibit the state board from
taking enforcement action against a local government for violating the Advanced Clean Fleets
Regulation if the alleged violation occurs before January 1, 2025.

    Notes:  Executive Order No. N-79-20 establishes the goal of transitioning medium- and heavy-duty
vehicles in California to zero-emission vehicles (ZEVs) by 2045 for all operations where feasible and by
2035 for drayage trucks, and requires the California Air Resources Board (CARB) to develop and
propose medium- and heavy-duty vehicle (MDHD) regulations to meet that goal. 

In April 2023, CARB approved the Advanced Clean Fleets (ACF) regulations which will require fleet
owners operating vehicles for private services, federal fleets, and state and local government fleets,

Page 7/19

https://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=e%2BOqZkBpGOA4HDmhnaXrXxrWqRw72KyEb7u9i2eAS12p8DEgnpFeefs9Q6SQihYe
https://ad72.asmrc.org/
http://ct3k1.capitoltrack.com/Bills/23Bills%5Casm%5Cab_2601-2650%5Cab_2626_99_I_bill.htm
http://ct3k1.capitoltrack.com/Bills/23Bills%5Casm%5Cab_2601-2650%5Cab_2626_99_I_bill.pdf


to begin their transition toward ZEVs. Under the regulations, state and local government agencies
that own, lease, or operate MDHD trucks must ensure that 50 percent of new truck purchases
between 2024 and 2026 are ZEVs, and that all purchases are ZEVs after 2027. 

Specific counties and agencies with fewer than 10 vehicles are exempted until 2027. The regulations
additionally exempt emergency vehicles from this requirement. Other exemptions and extensions
include: (1) Daily usage exemption. Fleet owners may request an exemption to purchase a new ICE, if
no new BEV is available to purchase that can meet the demonstrated daily usage needs of any
existing vehicles of the same configuration in the fleet; (2) ZEV purchase exemption. Fleet owners may
request exemptions to purchase a new ICE vehicle if a needed configuration is not available to
purchase as a ZEV or NZEV; (3) ZEV Infrastructure delay. Fleet owners may request extensions if they
experience delays due to circumstances beyond their control on a project to install ZEV fueling
infrastructure. This includes delays in ZEV infrastructure construction and site electrification; (4) Mutual
aid exemption. Fleet owners with mutual aid agreements may request this exemption to purchase
new internal combustion engines not to exceed 25% of the total number of vehicles in the fleet; (5)
Backup vehicle exemption. Fleet owners may purchase a new or used ICE vehicle and exclude it from
the ZEV purchase requirement, if the vehicle is designated as a backup vehicle; and (6) Intermittent
snow removal vehicle exemption. Fleet owners receive an exemption from the ZEV purchase
requirements until January 1, 2030. 

The legislature passed AB 1594 (Garcia) last year to authorize public agency utilities to purchase
replacements for traditional utility-specialized vehicles that are at the end of life, as determined by the
CARB in consultation with public agency utilities, when needed to maintain reliable service and
respond to major foreseeable events, including severe weather, wildfires, natural disasters, and
physical attacks. 

This bill would extend the compliance dates for local government purchase of MDHD ZEV vehicles by 10
years; and would prohibit the state board from taking enforcement action against a local government
for violating the ACF Regulation if the alleged violation occurs before January 1, 2025. 

Desert Water Agency Legislative & Regulatory Platform: Policy Directive 1, Policy Directive 3, Policy
Directive 4 

Current Position: Not Yet Considered 

Recommended Position: Favor 
 

  AB 2947 (Lackey R)   Water: turfgrass conversion.
  Current Text: Introduced: 2/16/2024   html   pdf
  Introduced: 2/16/2024
  Status: 2/17/2024-From printer. May be heard in committee March 18.
  Is Urgency: N
  Is Fiscal: Y
  Location: 2/16/2024-A. PRINT
  Summary: The Water Conservation in Landscaping Act provides for a model water efficient landscape

ordinance that is adopted and updated at least every 3 years by the Department of Water Resources,
unless the department makes a specified finding. This bill would prohibit the department, when it
allocates funding for turf replacement programs, from excluding urban water suppliers’ turfgrass
conversion rebate programs if the rebate program requires the recipient of a rebate to achieve a net
water savings and to use the most efficient turfgrass irrigation equipment, as provided. The bill would
require an urban water supplier that offers a turfgrass conversion rebate program to report annually
to the department on the number of turfgrass conversions that are funded through the program and
the estimated water savings from the program.

    Notes:  According to the California Department of Water Resources (DWR): 

"About 40% of the water Californians use at home is used outdoors. Large water savings can be
gained by efficient landscape design, installation, management, and maintenance. This is accomplished
by choosing climate adapted plants, improving soil conditions, using, and maintaining high efficiency
irrigation equipment and managing the irrigation schedule to fit the plants water needs as they are
influenced by local climate." 

The state has provided grant funding to local agencies to assist with local rebate programs that
provided grants for commercial, institutional, a residential properties to convert natural turf lawns to
landscape designs that use less water or eliminate outdoor water use for the area converted. This
legislation would require DWR to make state grant funds available for local rebate programs that
replace a certain type of turf with turf or other groundcover that will result in less irrigation water
being applied to the area converted. The legislation provides statements of findings and declarations
in support of converting turf that results in lower outdoor water use without eliminating outdoor water
use. 

Page 8/19

https://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=DJZtGzET1y39nUlx%2FAHVTC0UpH9m8JklOfBd7Es1JOo%2B3Gp1r32yjWc4Poh%2F0Qko
https://ad34.asmrc.org/
http://ct3k1.capitoltrack.com/Bills/23Bills%5Casm%5Cab_2901-2950%5Cab_2947_99_I_bill.htm
http://ct3k1.capitoltrack.com/Bills/23Bills%5Casm%5Cab_2901-2950%5Cab_2947_99_I_bill.pdf


Desert Water Agency Legislative & Regulatory Platform: Policy Directive 2, Policy Directive 3 

Current Position: Not Yet Considered 

Recommended Position: Watch
 

  AB 3121 (Hart D)   Urban retail water suppliers: written notice: conservation order: dates.
  Current Text: Introduced: 2/16/2024   html   pdf
  Introduced: 2/16/2024
  Status: 2/17/2024-From printer. May be heard in committee March 18.
  Is Urgency: N
  Is Fiscal: N
  Location: 2/16/2024-A. PRINT
  Summary: Current law authorizes the State Water Resources Control Board, on and after January 1,

2025, to issue a written notice to an urban retail water supplier that does not meet its urban water
use objective. Current law authorizes the board, on and after January 1, 2026, to issue a conservation
order to an urban retail water supplier that does not meet its urban water use objective. This bill
would instead provide that the date the board is authorized to issue a written notice to January 1,
2026 and a conservation order to January 1, 2027.

    Notes:  Current law authorizes the State Water Resources Control Board, on and after January 1,
2025, to issue a written notice to an urban retail water supplier that does not meet its urban water
use objective. Current law authorizes the board, on and after January 1, 2026, to issue a conservation
order to an urban retail water supplier that does not meet its urban water use objective. 

SB 606 (Hertzberg) and AB 1668 (Friedman) were enacted in 2018 and establish a framework for long-
term improvements in urban water use efficiency and drought planning as California adapts to climate
change impacts. The legislation requires that long-term urban water use efficiency standards be set so
that urban retail water suppliers’ urban water use objectives, together with other water uses
excluded from the long-term standards, would exceed the statewide 2020 water conservation targets
required pursuant to SB X7-7 (California Water Code (WC) §10609.2(d)). 

The 2018 legislation requires the Department of Water Resources (DWR), in coordination with the
State Water Resources Control Board (Board), to conduct necessary studies and investigations and
develop the following recommendations for adoption by the Board: (1) Standard for outdoor
residential water use (WC §10609.6); (2) Standard for commercial, industrial and institutional outdoor
irrigation of landscape areas with dedicated irrigation meters or equivalent technologies (WC
§10609.8); (3) Appropriate variances for unique uses that have a significant effect on urban retail
water supplier’s urban water use objective (WC §10609.14); (4) Guidelines and methodologies for
calculating the urban water use objective (WC §10609.16); and (5) Performance measures for
commercial, industrial and institutional water use (WC §10609.10). 

The Board, in coordination with DWR, is required to adopt long-term standards, appropriate variances,
guidelines, and methodologies for calculating urban water use objectives by June 30, 2022 (WC
§10609.2). These standards, variances, and performance measures will become effective following the
Board’s adoption of the recommendations through a public rulemaking process. 

The board released proposed regulations to implement the framework, informed by studies and
recommendations by DWR in August 2023 and expects to adopt final regulations in the summer of
2024. Regulations would then take effect October 1, 2024, over two years beyond the June 30, 2022
statutory deadline. 

The Office of the Legislative Analyst released a report on January 4, 2024, that found that the
proposed regulations will create challenges for water suppliers in several key ways, in many cases
without compelling justifications. The report, titled “Assessing Early Implementation of Urban Water
Use Efficiency Requirements” found that the proposed regulations would add complexity, could be
difficult to achieve, add significant costs, could disproportionately affect lower-income customers, and
impose aggressive timelines. 

The LAO offered many recommendations to improve the proposed regulations, including extending
some deadlines. 

This bill would delay the Board’s authority for issuing written notices and conservation orders for
failure to meet urban water use objectives by one year, respectively. 

This bill is similar to SB 1330 (Archuleta) in that the latter measure also, among other provisions, seeks
to delay when the Water Board may issue written notices and conservation orders for failure to meet
urban water use objectives. SB 1330 delays the board’s authority to issue a written notice from
January 1, 2025, to January 1, 2027 and a conservation order from January 1, 2026 to January 1,

Page 9/19

https://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=THGWfsS%2BVgWSEB1e958%2FCamd58lJNuVOOPF3tWTqOgFoNKA9mCI%2FgHrchYHlp%2F2M
https://a37.asmdc.org/
http://ct3k1.capitoltrack.com/Bills/23Bills%5Casm%5Cab_3101-3150%5Cab_3121_99_I_bill.htm
http://ct3k1.capitoltrack.com/Bills/23Bills%5Casm%5Cab_3101-3150%5Cab_3121_99_I_bill.pdf


2030. 

The Agency should consider taking a “watch” position on this measure and a support position on SB
1330 as moving compliance and enforcement deadlines by one year does not match up with the 2-
year delay between the 2018 law deadline for the state board to adopt regulations (June 30 of 2022)
and the current schedule of adopting them this August with the effective date of October 2024. 

Desert Water Agency Legislative & Regulatory Platform: Policy Directive 1, Policy Directive 2, Policy
Directive 3, Policy Directive 4 

Current Position: Not Yet Considered 

Recommended Position: Watch
 

  ACA 16 (Bryan D)   Environmental rights.
  Current Text: Introduced: 1/25/2024   html   pdf
  Introduced: 1/25/2024
  Status: 1/26/2024-From printer. May be heard in committee February 25.
  Is Urgency: 
  Is Fiscal: Y
  Location: 1/25/2024-A. PRINT
  Summary: The California Constitution declares various inalienable rights of the people, including the

right to enjoy and defend life and liberty, acquire, possess, and protect property, and pursue and
obtain safety, happiness, and privacy. This measure would amend the California Constitution to declare
that the people have a right to clean air and water and a healthy environment.

    Notes:  The California Constitution declares various inalienable rights of the people, including the right
to enjoy and defend life and liberty, acquire, possess, and protect property, and pursue and obtain
safety, happiness, and privacy. 

This measure would amend the California Constitution to declare that the people have a right to clean
air and water and a healthy environment. 

The bill is sponsored by the Center for Biological Diversity, Center for Community Action and
Environmental Justice, Community Water Center, Human Impact Partners, Green Amendments for the
Generations, Climate Equity Policy Center, and Sunrise Movement LA. 

According to the bill Author and sponsors, California has led the nation in combating the effects of
climate change for many years— from statutorily protecting the right to affordable drinking water, to
advancing statewide air quality and emissions standards. Despite these efforts, the state’s
Constitution still has no permanent environmental language in it. In fact, many other states are ahead
of California in their efforts to establish the right to a healthy environment for all of their residents.
These “Green Amendments” are becoming commonplace for states seeking to further protect and
affirm environmental rights. Most recently, in 2021, the state of New York proposed to amend its
constitution to add environmental language. To date, Nevada, New Mexico, Hawaii, Connecticut, Texas,
Maine, Tennessee, West Virginia, and Washington all have introduced green amendment language.
ACA 16 will codify the right to clean air, water, and a healthy environment for every Californian
providing a foundation for the laws the legislature has fought to pass, and a permanent guidepost for
our longevity and sustainability. 

The Agency should consider taking a 'not favor' position on this measure as it raises concerns about
Prop 218 and Prop 26 regarding property related fees and charges. If there is a constitutional right to
clean water, it creates potential conflict with paying for a commodity (property related service). It is
unclear whether the measure would extend to water quality in waters of the state, or just to drinking
water? 

The California legislature adopted the Human Right to Water in 2012. AB 685, by Assembly Member
Eng, declared that it is the established policy of the state that every human being has the right to
safe, clean, affordable, and accessible water adequate for human consumption, cooking, and sanitary
purposes. The bill required all relevant state agencies, to consider this state policy when revising,
adopting, or establishing policies, regulations, and grant criteria when those policies, regulations, and
grant criteria are pertinent to the uses of water described above. The bill was opposed by EID. 

This legislation and AB 685 are similar to AB 1242 (Ruskin) from 2009, which ACWA officially opposed.
That bill was ultimately vetoed by Governor Schwarzenegger who, in his veto message, highlighted
the unnecessary duplication of provisions already contained in California law, and cited the potential
for “costly and constant litigation.” 

Similar concerns are raised by this measure. 

Page 10/19

https://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=7wfMOLMO7joY3N3p4cmaID5BHGDO8HtedYQSYTovudP9N3N%2BOnjYKXf5LkaGRdxw
https://a55.asmdc.org/
http://ct3k1.capitoltrack.com/Bills/23Bills%5Casm%5Cab_0001-0050%5Caca_16_99_I_bill.htm
http://ct3k1.capitoltrack.com/Bills/23Bills%5Casm%5Cab_0001-0050%5Caca_16_99_I_bill.pdf


Desert Water Agency Legislative & Regulatory Platform: Policy Directive 3 

Current Position: Not Yet Considered 

Recommended Position: Not Favor
 

  SB 903 (Skinner D)   Environmental health: product safety: perfluoroalkyl and polyfluoroalkyl substances.
  Current Text: Amended: 2/21/2024   html   pdf
  Introduced: 1/4/2024
  Last Amend: 2/21/2024
  Status: 2/29/2024-Re-referred to Coms. on E.Q. and JUD.
  Is Urgency: N
  Is Fiscal: Y
  Location: 2/29/2024-S. E.Q.
  Summary: Current law, commencing January 1, 2025, prohibits the manufacture, distribution, sale, or

offering for sale in the state of any new, not previously used, textile articles that contain regulated
perfluoroalkyl and polyfluoroalkyl substances (PFAS). Current law, commencing January 1, 2025,
prohibits the manufacture, sale, delivery, holding, or offering for sale in commerce of any cosmetic
product that contains intentionally added PFAS. This bill would, beginning January 1, 2030, prohibit a
person from distributing, selling, or offering for sale a product that contains intentionally added PFAS,
as defined, unless the Department of Toxic Substances Control has made a determination that the use
of PFAS in the product is a currently unavoidable use, the prohibition is preempted by federal law, or
the product is used. The bill would specify the criteria and procedures for determining whether the use
of PFAS in a product is a currently unavoidable use, for renewing that determination, and for revoking
that determination. The bill would require the department to maintain on its internet website a list of
each determination of currently unavoidable use, when each determination expires, and the products
and uses that are exempt from the prohibition. The bill would impose a civil penalty for a violation of
the prohibition, as specified. The bill would establish the PFAS Penalty Account and require all civil
penalties received to be deposited into that account and, upon appropriation by the Legislature, to be
used for the administration and enforcement of these provisions, as specified. This bill would, by
January 1, 2027, require the department to adopt regulations to carry out the provisions of this bill.

    Notes:  According to the United States Environmental Protection Agency, PFAS are a large group of
man-made chemicals used in consumer products and industrial processes. In use since the 1940s,
PFAS are resistant to heat, oils, stains, grease, and water—properties which contribute to their
persistence in the environment. Best known are PFOA, formerly used to make DuPont’s Teflon, and
PFOS, formerly in 3M’s Scotchgard. Very low exposure to some PFAS chemicals has been linked to 
cancer, thyroid disease, weakened childhood immunity and many other health problems. Tests of tap
water, military bases and industrial sites have found PFAS contamination in more than 5,021 locations
in 50 states, the District of Columbia and two territories. Drinking water for up to 200 million Americans
may be contaminated with PFAS. The Central Basin has a cluster of drinking water wells that have
been contaminated. 

On March 14, 2023, EPA announced the proposed National Primary Drinking Water Regulation 
(NPDWR) for six PFAS including perfluorooctanoic acid (PFOA), perfluorooctane sulfonic acid (PFOS), 
perfluorononanoic acid (PFNA), hexafluoropropylene oxide dimer acid (HFPO-DA, commonly known as 
GenX Chemicals), perfluorohexane sulfonic acid (PFHxS), and perfluorobutane sulfonic acid (PFBS). The 
proposed PFAS NPDWR does not require any actions until it is finalized. EPA expects that if fully 
implemented, the rule will prevent thousands of deaths and reduce tens of thousands of serious
PFASattributable 
illnesses. 

On February 1, 2024, EPA announced it will be proposing to modify the definition of hazardous waste 
as it applies to cleanups at permitted hazardous waste facilities. This modification would assure that 
EPA’s regulations clearly reflect EPA’s and authorized states’ authority to require cleanup of the full 
range of substances that the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act (RCRA) intended, including 
emerging chemicals of concern, such as PFAS, that may present substantial hazards, at permitted 
facilities. Currently, the regulations do not clearly and accurately reflect the full authorities granted to 
EPA by Congress. 

EPA is also proposing to amend its RCRA regulations to add multiple PFAS compounds as hazardous 
constituents. These PFAS would be added to the list of substances identified for consideration in 
facility assessments and, where necessary, further investigation and cleanup through the corrective 
action process at hazardous waste treatment, storage and disposal facilities. 
According to the announcement of the proposed rules: 

"These proposed rules would strengthen protections for communities and drinking water supplies 
located near the 1,740 permitted hazardous waste facilities across the nation. Corrective action under
RCRA requires facilities that treat, store or dispose of hazardous waste to protect health and the 
environment by investigating and cleaning up hazardous releases into soil, groundwater, surface 

Page 11/19

https://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=4zOE2OUFOuLwJJEPju9myEl%2BEToP5Kq7vP%2B%2FQDELofRedFO2ScJDtMwmYm8Fyw63
http://sd09.senate.ca.gov/
http://ct3k1.capitoltrack.com/Bills/23Bills%5Csen%5Csb_0901-0950%5Csb_903_98_A_bill.htm
http://ct3k1.capitoltrack.com/Bills/23Bills%5Csen%5Csb_0901-0950%5Csb_903_98_A_bill.pdf


water, and air. Hazardous waste cleanups are a crucial part of EPA’s focus on environmental justice 
and help to protect public health in part by addressing disparities in access to a clean and safe 
environment." 

Manufacturer 3M announced last year that it would stop making them by the end of 2025. The 
American Chemistry Council, an association that represents chemical makers, said that PFOA and PFOS
were phased out of production by its members more than eight years ago. “We support restrictions on
their use globally, and we support drinking water standards for PFOA and PFOS based on the best 
available science,” the council said in an email to CNN. It does, however, say it that has “serious 
concerns” about the science that the EPA used to create the rule that it calls “conservative.” 

At the federal level, the US Food and Drug Administration phased out the use of certain PFAS chemicals
in 2016. The FDA and manufacturers also agreed in 2020 to phase out some PFAS chemicals from food 
packaging and other items that came into contact with food. 

This legislation would, beginning January 1, 2030, prohibit a person from distributing, selling, or 
offering for sale a product that contains intentionally added PFAS, as defined, unless the Department 
of Toxic Substances Control has made a determination that the use of PFAS in the product is a 
currently unavoidable use, the prohibition is preempted by federal law, or the product is used. The bill 
would specify the criteria and procedures for determining whether the use of PFAS in a product is a 
currently unavoidable use, for renewing that determination, and for revoking that determination. The 
bill would require the department to maintain on its internet website a list of each determination of 
currently unavoidable use, when each determination expires, and the products and uses that are 
exempt from the prohibition. The bill would impose a civil penalty for a violation of the prohibition, as 
specified. The bill would establish the PFAS Penalty Account and require all civil penalties received to 
be deposited into that account and, upon appropriation by the Legislature, to be used for the 
administration and enforcement of these provisions, as specified. 

This bill would, by January 1, 2027, require the department to adopt regulations to carry out the 
provisions of this bill. The bill would require the regulations to establish and provide for the 
assessment of an application fee. The bill would create the PFAS Oversight Fund and require all 
application fees to be deposited into the fund. The bill would require moneys in the account, upon 
appropriation by the Legislature, to be used to cover the department’s reasonable costs of 
administering this legislation if enacted. 

Desert Water Agency Legislative & Regulatory Platform: Policy Directive 2 

Current Position: Not Yet Considered 

Recommended Position: Favor
 

  SB 908 (Cortese D)   Public records: legislative records: electronic messages.
  Current Text: Introduced: 1/8/2024   html   pdf
  Introduced: 1/8/2024
  Status: 1/9/2024-From printer. May be acted upon on or after February 8.
  Is Urgency: N
  Is Fiscal: Y
  Location: 1/8/2024-S. RLS.
  Summary: Would prohibit an elected or appointed official or employee of a public agency from creating

or sending a public record using a nonofficial electronic messaging system unless the official or
employee sends a copy of the public record to an official electronic messaging system, as specified. By
imposing additional duties on local agencies, the bill would create a state-mandated local program.

    Notes:  This legislation proposes to incorporate the holding of the California Supreme Court in City of
San Jose v. Superior Court (2017) 2 Cal.5th 608: "Consistent with the Legislature's purpose in
enacting CPRA, and our constitutional mandate to interpret the Act broadly in favor of public access
(Cal. Const., art. I, § 3, subd. (b)(2)), we hold that a city employee's writings about public business are
not excluded from CPRA simply because they have been sent, received, or stored in a personal
account." 

The Court recognized that "public access to information must sometimes yield to personal privacy
interests. When enacting CPRA, the Legislature was mindful of the right to privacy (§ 6250 ), and set
out multiple exemptions designed to protect that right." The Court offered some guidance on this
question: 

"Whether a writing is sufficiently related to public business will not always be clear. For example,
depending on the context, an email to a spouse complaining "my coworker is an idiot" would likely not
be a public record. Conversely, an email to a superior reporting the coworker's mismanagement of an
agency project might well be. Resolution of the question, particularly when writings are kept in
personal accounts, will often involve an examination of several factors, including the content itself; the

Page 12/19

https://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=uUOEtoJkSj3%2Bpu0GjUnUTz7%2BFWPQi7jekh4N1kwdiqBMGpIpmlkU0aoYy%2FUtzsbQ
http://sd15.senate.ca.gov/
http://ct3k1.capitoltrack.com/Bills/23Bills%5Csen%5Csb_0901-0950%5Csb_908_99_I_bill.htm
http://ct3k1.capitoltrack.com/Bills/23Bills%5Csen%5Csb_0901-0950%5Csb_908_99_I_bill.pdf


context in, or purpose for which, it was written; the audience to whom it was directed; and whether
the writing was prepared by an employee acting or purporting to act within the scope of his or her
employment." 

The Court offered that to qualify as a public record under CPRA, at a minimum, a writing must relate in
some substantive way to the conduct of the public's business, writing: 

"This standard, though broad, is not so elastic as to include every piece of information the public may
find interesting. Communications that are primarily personal, containing no more than incidental
mentions of agency business, generally will not constitute public records. For example, the public might
be titillated to learn that not all agency workers enjoy the company of their colleagues, or hold them in
high regard. However, an employee's electronic musings about a colleague's personal shortcomings
will often fall far short of being a "writing containing information relating to the conduct of the public's
business." (§ 6252, subd. (e).)" 

This legislation seems consistent with the holding in City of San Jose v. Superior Court. If enacted, this
legislation will require DWA, to the extent such guidance is not in place, to prepare and adopt
guidance for electronic records relating to agency business that is located on an employee's personal
communication devices and accounts. Even a requirement that all communications related to public
business be conducted on an agency device and account will require agency personnel to parse
communications to determine those subject to disclosure and those that fall under a California Public
Records Act exemption. 

The state is not required to reimburse the agency for costs imposed by this legislation because
reimbursement is not required pursuant to Section 6 of Article XIII B of the California Constitution
because the only costs that may be incurred by a local agency would result from a legislative mandate
that is within the scope of paragraph (7) of subdivision (b) of Section 3 of Article I of the California
Constitution. 

Desert Water Agency Legislative & Regulatory Platform: Policy Directive 3 

Current Position: Not Yet Considered 

Recommended Position: Watch 
 

  SB 937 (Wiener D)   Development projects: permits and other entitlements: fees and charges.
  Current Text: Introduced: 1/17/2024   html   pdf
  Introduced: 1/17/2024
  Status: 2/21/2024-Referred to Coms. on L. GOV. and HOUSING.
  Is Urgency: N
  Is Fiscal: Y
  Location: 2/21/2024-S. L. GOV.
  Summary: The Planning and Zoning Law requires each county and each city to adopt a

comprehensive, long-term general plan for its physical development, and the development of specified
land outside its boundaries, that includes, among other mandatory elements, a housing element. The
Permit Streamlining Act, among other things, requires a public agency that is the lead agency for a
development project to approve or disapprove that project within specified time periods. Current law
extended by 18 months the period for the expiration, effectuation, or utilization of a housing
entitlement, as defined, that was issued before, and was in effect on, March 4, 2020, and that would
expire before December 31, 2021, except as specified. Current law provides that if the state or a local
agency extended the otherwise applicable time for the expiration, effectuation, or utilization of a
housing entitlement for not less than 18 months, as specified, that housing entitlement would not be
extended an additional 18 months pursuant to these provisions. This bill would extend by 18 months
the period for the expiration, effectuation, or utilization of a housing entitlement, as defined, that was
issued before January 1, 2024, and that will expire before December 31, 2025, except as specified. The
bill would toll this 18-month extension during any time that the housing entitlement is the subject of a
legal challenge.

    Notes:  This bill is sponsored by the California Housing Consortium and the Housing Action Coalition. 

The Mitigation Fee Act regulates fees for development projects, fees for specific purposes, including
water and sewer connection fees, and fees for solar energy systems, among others. The act requires
local agencies to comply with various conditions when imposing fees, extractions, or charges as a
condition of approval of a proposed development or development project. The act defines fee to mean
a monetary exaction other than a tax or special assessment that is charged by a local agency to the
applicant in connection with approval of a development project for the purpose of defraying all or a
portion of the cost of public facilities related to the development project. The act exempts local agency
utility connection fees and capacity charges from this definition. This legislation would remove that
exception and would specify that water districts and sanitation districts are included in the definition of
a local agency for purposes of the act. 

Page 13/19

https://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=M26q9NCFRCvBj1%2FSSTngySwEIhjr0IWZrMtu8nBkdCPlOdjS6cilGrAWwtYTY%2BoB
http://sd11.senate.ca.gov/
http://ct3k1.capitoltrack.com/Bills/23Bills%5Csen%5Csb_0901-0950%5Csb_937_99_I_bill.htm
http://ct3k1.capitoltrack.com/Bills/23Bills%5Csen%5Csb_0901-0950%5Csb_937_99_I_bill.pdf


The Mitigation Fee Act prohibits a local agency that imposes fees or charges on a residential
development for the construction of public improvements or facilities from requiring the payment of
those fees or charges until the date of the final inspection or the date the certificate of occupancy is
issued, whichever occurs first. The act authorizes a local agency to require the payment sooner if
specified conditions are met, including if the fees or charges are to reimburse the local agency for
expenditures previously made. The act exempts units reserved for occupancy by lower income
households included in a residential development proposed by a nonprofit housing developer, as
specified, from the authorization to require an earlier payment, but authorizes a city or county to
require for those exempt units the posting of a performance bond or a letter of credit from a federally
insured, recognized depository institution to guarantee payment of any fees or charges. The act, if a
fee or charge is not fully paid prior to issuance of a building permit for construction, authorizes the
local agency to require the property owner to execute a contract to pay the fee or charge. 

This legislation would instead prohibit a local agency from requiring the payment of those fees or
charges until the date the certificate of occupancy is issued, and would prohibit the local agency from
charging interest or other fees on any amount deferred. The bill would remove the authorization for a
local agency to require the payment sooner if the fees or charges are to reimburse the local agency for
expenditures previously made. Since water service must be provided prior to construction of
residential dwelling units or commercial buildings, this legislation would require local agencies to carry
the cost burden of serving a proposed subdivision well before any revenue is received for the facilities,
possibly for many years after approval of a final map and initiation of required water and wastewater
infrastructure. This legislation places the burden of costs to service new development on the existing
customers of the local agency utility. 

By requiring local agencies to comply with specified requirements when imposing fees, extractions, or
charges as a condition of approval of a proposed development or development project, the bill would
impose a state-mandated local program. Ironically, this legislation provides that the state does not
have to reimburse local agencies because they have the authority to levy service charges, fees, or
assessments sufficient to pay for the program or level of service mandated by this act. The manner in
which such fees would be imposed given the provisions of this legislation is unclear. 

Desert Water Agency Legislative & Regulatory Platform: Policy Directive 1, Policy Directive 3, Policy
Directive 4 

Current Position: Not Yet Considered 

Recommended Position: Oppose
 

  SB 1034 (Seyarto R)   California Public Records Act: state of emergency.
  Current Text: Introduced: 2/6/2024   html   pdf
  Introduced: 2/6/2024
  Status: 2/14/2024-Referred to Com. on JUD.
  Is Urgency: N
  Is Fiscal: Y
  Location: 2/14/2024-S. JUD.
  Summary: The California Public Records Act requires state and local agencies to make their records

available for public inspection, except as specified. Current law requires each agency, within 10 days of
a request for a copy of records, to determine whether the request seeks copies of disclosable public
records in possession of the agency and to promptly notify the person of the determination and the
reasons therefor. Current law authorizes that time limit to be extended by no more than 14 days under
unusual circumstances, and defines “unusual circumstances” to include certain circumstances. This bill
would revise the unusual circumstances under which the time limit may be extended to include the
need to search for, collect, appropriately examine, and copy records during a state of emergency
proclaimed by the Governor when the state of emergency has affected the agency’s ability to timely
respond to requests due to decreased staffing or closure of the agency’s facilities.

    Notes:  This legislation would provide a local agency additional time to respond to a public records act
request during a state of emergency proclaimed by the Governor when the state of emergency has
affected the agency’s ability to timely respond to requests due to decreased staffing or closure of the
agency’s facilities. The time to respond to a request for records created during and related to the
state of emergency shall not be extended unless the request involves one or more of the unusual
circumstances, set forth under existing law: (1)The need to search for and collect the requested
records from field facilities or other establishments that are separate from the office processing the
request; (2) The need to search for, collect, and appropriately examine a voluminous amount of
separate and distinct records that are demanded in a single request; (3) The need for consultation,
which shall be conducted with all practicable speed, with another agency having substantial interest in
the determination of the request or among two or more components of the agency having substantial
subject matter interest therein; and (4) The need to compile data, to write programming language or a
computer program, or to construct a computer report to extract data. 

Page 14/19

https://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=dRr5kG7BlLPw5lpsubxpP%2FYw0Dqw8RKit0dLig%2FuN12uAW5W%2BSa1AeCgfYpqFpJh
https://sr32.senate.ca.gov/
http://ct3k1.capitoltrack.com/Bills/23Bills%5Csen%5Csb_1001-1050%5Csb_1034_99_I_bill.htm
http://ct3k1.capitoltrack.com/Bills/23Bills%5Csen%5Csb_1001-1050%5Csb_1034_99_I_bill.pdf


Desert Water Agency Legislative & Regulatory Platform: Policy Directive 3 

Current Position: Not Yet Considered 

Recommended Position: Favor
 

  SB 1110 (Ashby D)   Urban retail water suppliers: informational order: conservation order.
  Current Text: Introduced: 2/13/2024   html   pdf
  Introduced: 2/13/2024
  Status: 2/21/2024-Referred to Com. on N.R. & W.
  Is Urgency: N
  Is Fiscal: Y
  Location: 2/21/2024-S. N.R. & W.
  Summary: Current law authorizes the State Water Resources Control Board, on and after January 1,

2024, to issue informational orders pertaining to water production, water use, and water conservation
to an urban retail water supplier that does not meet its urban water use objective. Current law
requires the board to consider certain information in determining whether to issue an informational
order. This bill would require the board to additionally consider lower cost actions the water supplier
has implemented or will implement in order to help the water supplier achieve overall water supply
resiliency in determining whether to issue an informational order.

    Notes:  The "Making Water Conservation a Way of Life" laws enacted in 2018 authorize the State
Water Resources Control Board, on and after January 1, 2024, to issue informational orders pertaining
to water production, water use, and water conservation to an urban retail water supplier that does
not meet its urban water use objective. Informational orders are intended to obtain 
information on supplier activities, water production, and conservation efforts in order to identify
technical assistance needs and assist urban water suppliers in meeting their urban water use
objectives. Existing law provides that in determining whether to issue an informational order, the
board shall consider the degree to which the urban retail water supplier is not meeting its urban
water use objective, information provided in the report required by Section 10609.24, and actions the
urban retail water supplier has implemented or will implement in order to help meet the urban water
use objective. 

The Water Code chapter that sets forth the "Urban Water Use Objectives and Water Use Reporting"
requirements [Sections 10609 - 10609.38] "establishes a method to estimate the aggregate amount
of water that would have been delivered the previous year by an urban retail water supplier if all that
water had been used efficiently. This estimated aggregate water use is the urban retail water
supplier’s urban water use objective. The method is based on water use efficiency standards and local
service area characteristics for that year. By comparing the amount of water actually used in the
previous year with the urban water use objective, local urban water suppliers will be in a better
position to help eliminate unnecessary use of water; that is, water used in excess of that needed to
accomplish the intended beneficial use." Paragraph (1) of subdivision (c) of Section 10609 specifies the
intent of the Legislature that "Local urban retail water suppliers should have primary responsibility for
meeting standards-based water use targets, and they shall retain the flexibility to develop their water
supply portfolios, design and implement water conservation strategies, educate their customers, and
enforce their rules." 

This legislation would require the state board, in determining whether to issue an informational order,
to also consider "lower cost actions the water supplier has implemented or will implement in order to
help the water supplier achieve overall water supply resiliency." First, it is unclear whether the
achievement of "overall water supply resiliency" equals meeting the urban water use objective.
Second, the 2018 laws do not provide a cost-effectiveness standard for local agencies to implement
actions to meet the urban water use objective. In other words, to the extent a supplier is not meeting
its urban water use objective, existing law requires the implementation of actions regardless of cost
effectiveness. 

Section 10609.25 of the Water Code, as part of the first report submitted to the Department of Water
Resources by an urban retail water supplier, requires each urban retail water supplier to provide a
narrative that describes the water demand management measures that the supplier plans to
implement to achieve its urban water use objective by January 1, 2027. Again, there is no distinction
between actions based on a measure of cost effectiveness. 

Existing law, on and after January 1, 2026, authorizes the state board to issue a conservation order
to an urban retail water supplier that does not meet its urban water use objective. A conservation
order may consist of, but is not limited to, referral to the department for technical assistance,
requirements for education and outreach, requirements for local enforcement, and other efforts to
assist urban retail water suppliers in meeting their urban water use objective. This legislation would
add an additional consideration for the state board in deciding whether to issue a conservation order, 
and that would be a consideration of the water supplier’s overall water supply management portfolio,
including lower cost actions the water supplier has implemented or will implement in order to help the

Page 15/19

https://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=v7%2BsGljaAQln8L21wkEcNfFgCk%2BtZq%2F7pVG0AoTNqwWD%2Btc6s7hx0wi4IqC8Z9xb
https://sd08.senate.ca.gov/
http://ct3k1.capitoltrack.com/Bills/23Bills%5Csen%5Csb_1101-1150%5Csb_1110_99_I_bill.htm
http://ct3k1.capitoltrack.com/Bills/23Bills%5Csen%5Csb_1101-1150%5Csb_1110_99_I_bill.pdf


water supplier achieve overall water supply resiliency. 

The Office of the Legislative Analyst released a report on January 4, 2024, that was required under
the 2018 laws. One of the findings stated: 

"The new framework is estimated to result in cumulative costs in the low tens of billions of dollars from
2025 through 2040. These costs will be borne primarily by suppliers, wastewater agencies, and
customers. Particularly in the near term, suppliers’ costs will increase as they attempt to implement
the new requirements, such as from providing incentives for residents to make behavioral changes like
converting their lawns to more drought tolerant landscapes. Whether the benefits of the new rules
ultimately will outweigh the costs is unclear. While an assessment from SWRCB estimates a cumulative
net benefit of $2.5 billion, an independent review conducted by a private consulting firm—which raises
credible questions about SWRCB’s estimates—projects net costs of $7.4 billion. Moreover, even if
benefits outweigh costs in the long run, whether they merit the amount of work and costs to
implement the requirements as currently proposed is uncertain." 

The goal of this legislation is unclear given that existing law provides flexibility for the supplier to
achieve the urban water use objective and does not address whether actions the supplier implements
are higher cost or lower cost actions. 

Desert Water Agency Legislative & Regulatory Platform: Policy Directive 2, Policy Directive 3 

Current Position: Not Yet Considered 

Recommended Position: Watch
 

  SB 1162 (Cortese D)   Public contracts: skilled and trained workforce requirement.
  Current Text: Introduced: 2/14/2024   html   pdf
  Introduced: 2/14/2024
  Status: 2/21/2024-Referred to Com. on L., P.E. & R.
  Is Urgency: N
  Is Fiscal: Y
  Location: 2/21/2024-S. L., P.E. & R.
  Summary: Current law establishes requirements that apply when a public entity is required by statute

or regulation to obtain an enforceable commitment that a bidder, contractor, or other entity will use a
skilled and trained workforce to complete a contract or project. Current law also authorizes a public
entity to require that a bidder, contractor, or other entity use a skilled and trained workforce,
regardless of whether they are required to do so by a statute or regulation. Current law requires a
public entity to include a notice in all bid documents and construction contracts when the use of a
skilled and trained workforce is required. Current law specifies that the failure of a public entity to
include that notice does not excuse a public entity from the requirement to obtain an enforceable
commitment that a bidder, contractor, or other entity will use a skilled and trained workforce or, if the
requirement is imposed by a statute or regulation, the bidder, contractor, or other entity from that
obligation to use a skilled or trained workforce. This bill would specify that the above described
provisions apply to a commitment from or obligation on a bidder, contractor, subcontractor, or other
entity.

    Notes:  Existing law authorizes a public entity to obtain an enforceable commitment that a bidder, 
contractor, or other entity will use a skilled and trained workforce to complete a contract or project. 
“Public entity,” as used in this part, means the state, county, city, city and county, district, public 
authority, public agency, municipal corporation, or any other political subdivision or public corporation in
the state. 

This legislation would additionally authorize a public entity to obtain an enforceable commitment from 
a subcontractor. 

Desert Water Agency Legislative & Regulatory Platform: Policy Directive 3 

Current Position: Not Yet Considered 

Recommended Position: Favor
 

  SB 1210 (Skinner D)   New housing construction: electrical, gas, sewer, and water service connections:
charges.

  Current Text: Introduced: 2/15/2024   html   pdf
  Introduced: 2/15/2024
  Status: 2/29/2024-Referred to Coms. on E., U. & C. and L. GOV.
  Is Urgency: N
  Is Fiscal: Y

Page 16/19

https://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=VTn0zZoSVjAl1u89B7rWR2Eo%2Fq33jnPrnn%2BMaFHHNjB1hpCLJh5q%2BKLD3rBH9KkX
http://sd15.senate.ca.gov/
http://ct3k1.capitoltrack.com/Bills/23Bills%5Csen%5Csb_1151-1200%5Csb_1162_99_I_bill.htm
http://ct3k1.capitoltrack.com/Bills/23Bills%5Csen%5Csb_1151-1200%5Csb_1162_99_I_bill.pdf
https://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=eeNnkvjOQFvVs%2BjjMBwFG2RFGJjqeDM%2BGDl2%2F%2BjcY7ow0WJzVKhOfHcVUG7veHPA
http://sd09.senate.ca.gov/
http://ct3k1.capitoltrack.com/Bills/23Bills%5Csen%5Csb_1201-1250%5Csb_1210_99_I_bill.htm
http://ct3k1.capitoltrack.com/Bills/23Bills%5Csen%5Csb_1201-1250%5Csb_1210_99_I_bill.pdf


  Location: 2/29/2024-S. E. U., & C.
  Summary: Current law defines the term “public utility” for certain purposes to include, among other

corporations, every gas corporation, electrical corporation, water corporation, and sewer system
corporation, where the service is performed for, or the commodity is delivered to, the public or any
portion thereof. This bill would, for new housing construction, prohibit a connection, capacity, or other
point of connection charge from a public utility, as defined, or a special district, as defined, for electrical,
gas, sewer, or water service from exceeding 1% of the reported building permit value of that housing
unit. The bill would require a public utility or special district to issue an above-described charge over a
period of at least 10 years commencing on the date when the housing unit is first occupied, as
specified. The bill would require a public utility to publicly report on its internet website the amount of
any charge issued each year pursuant the above-described provision by the housing unit’s address.

    Notes:  This legislation, for new housing construction, prohibits a connection, capacity, or other point 
of connection charge from a public utility or special district for electrical, gas, sewer, or water service 
from exceeding 1 percent of the reported building permit value of that housing unit. 

This legislation also would require a special district providing water or sewer service to impose a 
connection fee or capacity charge over a period of at least 10 years commencing on the date when the
housing unit is first occupied. If the housing unit is sold before the expiration of that period, the 
subsequent owners of the housing unit shall continue paying the charge over the remainder of that 
period. 

This legislation will have a negative impact on the financial condition of the agency. It will place the
burden of serving new housing on existing property owners and customers. The legislation also lacks
provisions regarding enforceable conditions for subsequent property owners (or mortgage holders)
and procedures for collecting payments from property owners (annual payment directly to the special
district, inclusion in escrow payments, inclusion on property tax bill). Although the goal of the
legislation is to make new housing more affordable, there is no guarantee that the market price of a
new home will reflect the fact that a connection fee or capacity charge was not paid by the developer. 

Desert Water Agency Legislative & Regulatory Platform: Policy Directive 1, Policy Directive 2, Policy
Directive 3, Policy Directive 4 

Current Position: Not Yet Considered 

Recommended Position: Oppose
 

  SB 1330 (Archuleta D)   Urban retail water supplier: water use.
  Current Text: Introduced: 2/16/2024   html   pdf
  Introduced: 2/16/2024
  Status: 2/29/2024-Referred to Com. on N.R. & W.
  Is Urgency: N
  Is Fiscal: Y
  Location: 2/29/2024-S. N.R. & W.
  Summary: Current law requires the Department of Water Resources, in coordination with the State

Water Resources Control Board, to conduct necessary studies and investigations, and recommend for
adoption by the board appropriate variances for unique uses that can have a material effect on an
urban retail water supplier’s urban water use objective. Current law requires the department, in
recommending variances, to also recommend a threshold of significance for each recommended
variance. Current law requires an urban retail water supplier to request and receive approval by the
board for inclusion of a variance in calculating their water use objective. Current law requires the
board to post specified information on its internet website relating to variances, including a list of all
urban retail water suppliers with approved variances. This bill would require the board to adopt
variances recommended by the department for unique uses that can have a material effect on an
urban retail water supplier’s urban water use objective. The bill would provide that variances adopted
by the board shall not be subject to a threshold of significance. The bill would require an urban retail
water supplier to self-certify the amount of water included in its urban water use objective that is
attributable to a variance. The bill would require the board to randomly audit a select number of
variances each year to ensure the self-certifications are based on variances adopted by the board.

    Notes:  SB 1330 would enact changes to the “Making Water Conservation a Way of Life” laws based 
on recommendations by Office of the Legislative Analyst in a report issued January 4, 2024. 

SB 606 (Hertzberg) and AB 1668 (Friedman) were enacted in 2018 and establish a framework for
longterm 
improvements in urban water use efficiency and drought planning as California adapts to climate 
change impacts. The legislation requires that long-term urban water use efficiency standards be set so
that urban retail water suppliers’ urban water use objectives, together with other water uses 
excluded from the long-term standards, would exceed the statewide 2020 water conservation targets 
required pursuant to SB X7-7 (California Water Code (WC) §10609.2(d)). 

Page 17/19

https://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=OhDESwU3Fu74W7yRoKljVxt4lGilAibnM7aAfCVa31xH3rF%2Bwmi%2FctwQ4n%2BpUg9c
https://sd30.senate.ca.gov/
http://ct3k1.capitoltrack.com/Bills/23Bills%5Csen%5Csb_1301-1350%5Csb_1330_99_I_bill.htm
http://ct3k1.capitoltrack.com/Bills/23Bills%5Csen%5Csb_1301-1350%5Csb_1330_99_I_bill.pdf


The 2018 legislation requires the Department of Water Resources (DWR), in coordination with the 
State Water Resources Control Board (Board), to conduct necessary studies and investigations and 
develop the following recommendations for adoption by the Board: (1) Standard for outdoor 
residential water use (WC §10609.6); (2) Standard for commercial, industrial and institutional outdoor 
irrigation of landscape areas with dedicated irrigation meters or equivalent technologies (WC 
§10609.8); (3) Appropriate variances for unique uses that have a significant effect on urban retail 
water supplier’s urban water use objective (WC §10609.14); (4) Guidelines and methodologies for 
calculating the urban water use objective (WC §10609.16); and (5) Performance measures for 
commercial, industrial and institutional water use (WC §10609.10). 

The Board, in coordination with DWR, is required to adopt long-term standards, appropriate variances,
guidelines, and methodologies for calculating urban water use objectives by June 30, 2022 (WC 
§10609.2). These standards, variances, and performance measures will become effective following the
Board’s adoption of the recommendations through a public rulemaking process. 

The board released proposed regulations to implement the framework, informed by studies and 
recommendations by DWR in August 2023 and expects to adopt final regulations in the summer of 
2024. Regulations would then take effect October 1, 2024, over two years beyond the June 30, 2022 
statutory deadline. 

The Office of the Legislative Analyst released a report on January 4, 2024, that found that the 
proposed regulations will create challenges for water suppliers in several key ways, in many cases 
without compelling justifications. The report, titled “Assessing Early Implementation of Urban Water 
Use Efficiency Requirements” can be found at here. The LAO found that the proposed regulations 
would add complexity, could be difficult to achieve, add significant costs, could disproportionately affect
lower-income customers, and impose aggressive timelines. 

The LAO offered many recommendations to improve the proposed regulations. Several of the 
recommendations would require legislative enactments to amend the 2018 legislation. SB 1330 
includes LAO recommendations regarding the following: (1) Simplify the Process for Applying for 
Variances and Decrease Threshold, (2) Clarify Who Should Collect Landscape Data in the Future; (3) 
Give Suppliers the Option of Reporting on a Calendar- or Fiscal-Year Basis; (4) Maintain Flexibility in
Calculation for Irrigable Landscapes, Allowing Inclusion of Some Landscapes That Are Not Currently 
Irrigated; and (5) Extend Some Deadlines. 

Three clients of our firm, Bellflower-Somerset MWC, Rowland Water District, and Walnut Valley Water
District are cosponsors of this legislation. 

Desert Water Agency Legislative & Regulatory Platform: Policy Directive 2, Policy Directive 3, Policy
Directive 4 

Current Position: Not Yet Considered 

Recommended Position: Support
 

  SB 1393 (Niello R)   Advanced Clean Fleets Regulation Appeals Advisory Committee.
  Current Text: Introduced: 2/16/2024   html   pdf
  Introduced: 2/16/2024
  Status: 2/29/2024-Referred to Coms. on E.Q. and TRANS.
  Is Urgency: N
  Is Fiscal: Y
  Location: 2/29/2024-S. E.Q.
  Summary: The California Global Warming Solutions Act of 2006 establishes the State Air Resources

Board as the state agency responsible for monitoring and regulating sources emitting greenhouse
gases and requires the state board to adopt rules and regulations to achieve the maximum
technologically feasible and cost-effective greenhouse gas emission reductions from those sources.
Pursuant to its authority, the state board has adopted the Advanced Clean Fleets Regulation, which
imposes various requirements for transitioning local, state, and federal government fleets of medium-
and heavy-duty trucks, other high-priority fleets of medium- and heavy-duty trucks, and drayage trucks
to zero-emission vehicles. The Advanced Clean Fleets Regulation authorizes entities subject to the
regulation to apply for exemptions from its requirements under certain circumstances. This bill would
require the state board to establish the Advanced Clean Fleets Regulation Appeals Advisory
Committee by an unspecified date for purposes of reviewing appeals of denied requests for
exemptions from the requirements of the Advanced Clean Fleets Regulation. The bill would require the
committee to include representatives of specified state agencies, other state and local government
representatives, and representatives of private fleet owners, the electric vehicle manufacturing
industry, and electrical corporations, as provided. The bill would require the committee to meet monthly
and would require recordings of its meetings to be made publicly available on the state board’s
internet website. The bill would require the committee to consider, and make a recommendation on, an

Page 18/19

https://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=dpFKr98S8pR%2BzyL2waw12O%2BKRgT3MuopiPCMZXSj1RcnjJmcGT5ObOD0OOfKYvGv
https://sr06.senate.ca.gov/
http://ct3k1.capitoltrack.com/Bills/23Bills%5Csen%5Csb_1351-1400%5Csb_1393_99_I_bill.htm
http://ct3k1.capitoltrack.com/Bills/23Bills%5Csen%5Csb_1351-1400%5Csb_1393_99_I_bill.pdf


appeal of an exemption request denial no later than 60 days after the appeal is made. The bill would
require specified information relating to the committee’s consideration of an appeal to be made publicly
available on the state board’s internet website.

    Notes:  Last year, the Legislature approved and Governor Newsom signed into law AB 1594. EID
supported enactment of AB 1594. The new law requires that any state regulation that seeks to
require, or otherwise compel, the procurement of medium- and heavy-duty zero-emission vehicles
shall authorize public agency utilities to purchase replacements for traditional utility-specialized
vehicles that are at the end of life, as determined by the State Air Resources Board in consultation
with public agency utilities, when needed to maintain reliable service and respond to major
foreseeable events, including, but not limited to, severe weather, wildfires, natural disasters, and
physical attacks, without regard to the model year of the vehicle being replaced. For the purposes of
determining the daily usage of a medium- or heavy-duty vehicle, a public agency utility may provide
comprehensive usage data for a class of vehicles that does not exclusively rely on the lowest mileage
reading and does not exclude the highest usage days. 

The California Air Resources Board (CARB) has adopted the Advanced Clean Fleets Regulation, which
imposes various requirements for transitioning local, state, and federal government fleets of medium-
and heavy-duty trucks, other high-priority fleets of medium- and heavy-duty trucks, and drayage
trucks to zero-emission vehicles. The Advanced Clean Fleets Regulation authorizes entities subject to
the regulation to apply for exemptions from its requirements under certain circumstances. 

This legislation would require CARB to establish the Advanced Clean Fleets Regulation Appeals
Advisory Committee by an unspecified date for purposes of reviewing appeals of denied requests for
exemptions from the requirements of the Advanced Clean Fleets Regulation. The bill would require the
committee to include representatives of specified state agencies, other state and local government
representatives, and representatives of private fleet owners, the electric vehicle manufacturing
industry, and electrical corporations, as provided. The bill would require the committee to meet
monthly and would require recordings of its meetings to be made publicly available on the state
board’s internet website. The bill would require the committee to consider, and make a
recommendation on, an appeal of an exemption request denial no later than 60 days after the appeal
is made. The bill would require specified information relating to the committee’s consideration of an
appeal to be made publicly available on the state board’s internet website. The bill would require the
state board to consider a recommendation of the committee at a public meeting no later than 60 days
after the recommendation is made. 

Water agencies throughout the state have a keen interest in the manner in which the Advanced Clean
Fleets Regulation will be implemented, particularly the ability of public agency utilities to purchase
replacements for traditional utility-specialized vehicles that are at the end of life. This legislation would
establish an advisory committee that would consider an appeal of a CARB denial for an exemption
request, which would provide a review by a neutral entity of a CARB decision. The advisory committee
cannot compel CARB to rescind its denial of an exemption. 

This legislation is focused on transit fleets and would not provide water utilities access to the
proposed advisory committee. Our firm believes the proposed advisory committee process should be
available to all entities subject to the Advanced Clean Fleet Regulations. 

Desert Water Agency Legislative & Regulatory Platform: Policy Directive 1, Policy Directive 3, Policy
Directive 4 

Current Position: Not Yet Considered 

Recommended Position: Support if Amended
Total Measures: 19
Total Tracking Forms: 19

Page 19/19



7-C

Board - Staff Reports\Bd Memos - Esther\2024\031924 Item 7C Authorize Finance Dir execute agreement RGS strategic planning staff report.docx 

STAFF REPORT 
TO 

DESERT WATER AGENCY 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

MARCH 19, 2024 

RE: REQUEST AUTHORIZATION FOR FINANCE DIRECTOR TO 
EXECUTE AGREEMENT FOR MANAGEMENT AND 
ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES WITH REGIONAL GOVERNMENT 
SERVICES FOR STRATEGIC PLANNING FACILITATION 
SERVICES 

In September 2023, the Desert Water Agency Board of Directors directed staff to begin 
the process of establishing a Strategic Plan for the Agency.  On November 2, 2023, the 
Executive Committee discussed contracting with a qualified Strategic Planning Services 
provider to facilitate the development of mission and vision statements and facilitate 
discussions for the development of a strategic plan document spanning five years that is 
a digestible, concise strategic plan document for the use and guidance of the Agency’s 
Management and Board of Directors.  

With direction from the Executive Committee, staff developed a Request for Proposal 
(RFP) and submitted it to five recommended service providers.  Three proposals were 
received and evaluated by an evaluation team comprised of management and Staff 
utilizing the evaluation criteria outlined within the RFP.   

Evaluation Criteria 
Criteria Weight 

Understanding of Need/Project Approach 40% 
Experience 20% 
Fee 25% 
Schedule 10% 
References 5% 
Total 100% 

Regional Government Services (RGS) was identified as the service provider with the best 
understanding of the Agency’s needs as well as the most desirable project approach.  In 
addition, RGS submitted the lowest cost proposal, though it was not the main determining 
factor. 



Board - Staff Reports\Bd Memos - Esther\2024\031924 Item 7C Authorize Finance Dir execute agreement RGS strategic planning staff report.docx 

Fee Proposals 
Service Provider Total Per Hour 

Regional Government Services $27,182 $158 
Shawn Comboy Executive $105,250 $340 
Woodard & Curran $88,830 $376 

On February 1, 2024, the Executive Committee reviewed the evaluation results and 
supported Staff’s recommendation and requested Staff proceed with contract 
negotiations. 

Fiscal Impact: 
The contract cost is estimated at $27,200.  Funds are available in the 2023/2024 budget 
for consulting services.   

Legal Review: 
N/A 

Recommendation: 
Staff recommends the Board of Directors authorize the Finance Director to execute the 
Management and Administrative Services Agreement with Regional Government 
Services for Strategic Planning Facilitation Services as outlined in Appendix B of the 
agreement.  

Attachments: 
1. Regional Government Services Proposal
2. Agreement for Management and Administrative Services



 

 

 

P .O.  BOX 1350    |     CARMEL VALLEY,  CA 93924    |     650 .587 .7300    |     WWW.RGS.CA. GOV  

 

 
RGS Is Committed to Reducing Paper Waste by Use of Electronic Processes 

 

RGS requests your assistance with meeting these waste reduction goals by joining us in the use of digital 
signature and electronic payment methods during our collaboration to reduce mailing and paper expenses. 
 

As a convenience, RGS offers DocuSign to digitally sign our Agreements, providing a secure and legally 
binding digital signature process that eliminates the need for printing and distribution of documents.   
 

Preamble:  The agreement for services described below is also an agreement to engage in a 
relationship between organizations – Agency partners.  In order to establish a mutually 
respectful relationship as well as a productive one, RGS has adopted the following values and 
business methods. 
 

Our Values 

• Expert Services:  RGS serves exclusively public sector agencies with its team of public-
sector experts. 

• Innovation:  RGS encourages and develops innovative and sustainable services to help 
each Agency meet its challenges through new modes of service provision. 

• Customer Driven:  RGS customizes solutions to achieve the right level and right kind of 
service at the right time for each Agency’s unique organizational needs. 

• Perseverance:  Sometimes the best solutions are not immediately apparent.  RGS listens, 
works with you, and sticks with it until a good fit with your needs is found. 

• Open Source Sharing:  RGS tracks emerging best practices and shares them, learning 
openly from each other’s hard-won experience. 

• Commitment:  Government agencies are the public’s only choice for many services.  Public 
trust is earned and must be used wisely.  And RGS will do its part.  Each Agency should 
and will know how RGS sets its rates.  RGS’ pledge to you is that we will act with honesty, 
openness, and full transparency. 

 
How RGS Does Business 
When you work with RGS you can expect: 

• RGS will strive to be explicit up front and put our understandings in writing.  Before 
making assumptions, we hope to talk directly to prevent any misunderstandings. 

• Ongoing interaction throughout our relationship to ensure that your needs are being met, 
and that projects progress appropriately and agreed-upon timelines are met. 

• RGS is committed to honest interaction. 

• When RGS employees are on your site, we expect them to treat people respectfully and be 
treated respectfully.  If problems arise, we want to communicate early, accurately, and 
thoroughly to ensure that we find mutually acceptable solutions. 

• As a public Agency, partnering is valued.  We look out for each Agency’s interests 
consistent with maintaining the public trust. 

• To keep expectations realistic, it is important to understand that RGS is a governmental, 
joint powers authority evolving to meet changing local government needs.  RGS has 
carefully constructed policies and procedures to allow maximum flexibility to meet your 
needs.  

DocuSign Envelope ID: 4204C37C-E0F9-4B82-8472-782365D94F3A



 

Agreement for Management and Administrative Services [2/22 Rev3] Page 2 of 16 
Between the Desert Water Agency and Regional Government Services Authority March 19, 2024 

 

Agreement for Management and Administrative Services 
 
This Agreement for Management Services (“Agreement”) is made and entered into as of the 19th  
day of March 2024, by and between the DESERT WATER AGENCY, a municipal agency 
(“Agency”), and Regional Government Services Authority (RGS), a joint powers authority, 
(each individually a “Party” and, collectively, the “Parties”). 
 
RECITALS 
THIS AGREEMENT is entered into with reference to the following facts and circumstances: 
A. That Agency desires to engage RGS to render certain services to it; 
B. That RGS is a management and administrative services provider and is qualified to provide 

such services to the Agency; and 
C. That Agency has elected to engage the services of RGS upon the terms and conditions as 

hereinafter set forth. 
 

TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 
Section 1. Services.  The services to be performed by RGS under this Agreement shall include 

those services set forth in the attached Exhibits, which are incorporated by this 
reference herein and made a part hereof as though it were fully set forth herein. 
 
Where in conflict, the terms of this Agreement supersede and prevail over any terms set 
forth in the Exhibits. 
 
1.1 Standard of Performance.  RGS shall perform all services required pursuant 

to this Agreement in the manner and according to the standards observed by a 
competent practitioner of the types of services that RGS agrees to provide in the 
geographical area in which RGS operates. 

 
1.2 Service Advisor.  To ensure quality and consistency for the services provided, 

RGS also assigns a service advisor to Agency.  The service advisor is available to 
assigned RGS staff and to Agency management and will check in regularly with 
both to address program/project directives. Typically service advisor time is not 
billed to Agency, with some exceptions where significant programmatic direction 
is provided.  

 
1.3 Reassignment of Personnel.  Assignment of personnel to provide the services 

described in the Exhibits is at the sole discretion of RGS. In the event that 
Agency or RGS, at any time during the term of this Agreement, desires the 
reassignment of personnel, Agency and RGS shall meet and discuss in good faith 
to address the issue of concern, including but not limited to reassigning such 
person or persons. For the avoidance of doubt, however, RGS retains sole control 
as to assignment of its personnel. 

 
1.4 Time.  RGS shall devote such time to the performance of services pursuant to 

this Agreement as may be reasonably necessary to meet the standard of 
performance described above and to provide the services described in the 
Exhibits. 
 

  

DocuSign Envelope ID: 4204C37C-E0F9-4B82-8472-782365D94F3A



 

Agreement for Management and Administrative Services [2/22 Rev3] Page 3 of 16 
Between the Desert Water Agency and Regional Government Services Authority March 19, 2024 

 

Section 2. Term of Agreement and Termination.   
 

2.1 Services shall commence on or about the Effective Date, and this Agreement is 
anticipated to remain in force to June 30, 2024, at which time services may 
continue on a month-to-month basis until one party terminates the Agreement 
or if Section 3 contains a “not to exceed” amount, until RGS charges for services 
reach the not-to-exceed amount at which point the Agreement will automatically 
terminate unless amended.  Services provided under the month-to-month 
provision are subject to current RGS staff rates in effect at the time of service. 
Once this Agreement has converted to a month-to month basis, it shall 
automatically terminate upon the ninety-first (91st) continuous day with no 
billable service hours. After the ninety-first (91st) day with no billable service 
hours, RGS shall provide Agency with written notice of the automatic 
termination of the Agreement. 

 
2.2 This Agreement may be terminated by either Party, with or without cause, upon 

30 days’ written notice.  Agency has the sole discretion to determine if the 
services performed by RGS are satisfactory to the Agency which determination 
shall be made in good faith.  If Agency determines that the services performed by 
RGS are not satisfactory and/or RGS has not resolved the performance issues to 
the satisfaction of the Agency, Agency may terminate this Agreement by giving 
written notice to RGS.  Upon receipt of notice of termination by either Party, 
RGS shall cease performing duties on behalf of the Agency on the termination 
date specified and the compensation payable to RGS shall include only the 
period for which services have been performed by RGS. 

 
Section 3. Compensation.  Payment for services under this Agreement shall not exceed $27,182 

and shall be as provided in the Exhibits. 
 

Section 4. Effective Date.  This Agreement shall become effective on the date first herein above 
written. 
 

Section 5. Relationship of Parties. 
 
5.1 It is understood that the relationship of RGS to the Agency is that of an 

independent contractor and all persons working for or under the direction of RGS 
are its agents or employees and not agents or employees of Agency.  The Agency 
and RGS shall, at all times, treat all persons working for or under the direction of 
RGS as agents and employees of RGS, and not as agents or employees of the 
Agency.  Agency shall have the right to control RGS employees only insofar as the 
results of RGS’ services rendered pursuant to this Agreement. In furtherance of 
this Section 5.1, the Parties agree as follows:  

 
5.1.1 Agency shall not request from RGS or from an RGS employee providing 

services pursuant to this Agreement an RGS employee’s Social Security 
Number or other similar personally identifying information.  

 
5.1.2 Agency shall not report an RGS employee to a third party as an employee 

of Agency. For the purposes of this Section 5.1, “third party” means 
another government agency, private company, or individual.  

DocuSign Envelope ID: 4204C37C-E0F9-4B82-8472-782365D94F3A



 

Agreement for Management and Administrative Services [2/22 Rev3] Page 4 of 16 
Between the Desert Water Agency and Regional Government Services Authority March 19, 2024 

 

 
5.1.3 In the event that a third-party requests information about an RGS 

employee—including but not limited to personally identifying information, 
hours or locations worked, tasks performed, or compensation—Agency 
shall inform RGS of the request prior to responding. If Agency possesses 
such information about an RGS employee, the Parties shall confer in good 
faith about an appropriate and legally compliant response to the request.  

 
5.2 RGS shall provide services under this Agreement through one or more employees 

of RGS qualified to perform services contracted for by Agency.  The positions of 
RGS staff that will coordinate services to the Agency are indicated in the 
Exhibits.   The Executive Director or assigned supervising RGS staff will consult 
with Agency on an as-needed basis to assure that the services to be performed are 
meeting Agency’s objectives. At any time the RGS employee may be providing 
services to one or more RGS clients concurrent with the services being provided 
under this Agreement. 
 

5.3 Agency shall not have the ability to direct how services are to be performed, 
specify the location where services are to be performed, or establish set hours or 
days for performance of services, except as set forth in the Exhibits.  Agency 
confirms that RGS employees are not assuming and are not expected to assume 
any Agency staff position(s). 

 
5.4 RGS employees may require access to Agency’s computer systems and networks 

to complete the assigned services. RGS requires its employees to agree to 
appropriate system usage policies, which include a pledge not to use partner 
agency electronic equipment for anything other than partner agency work.  
(These policies can be provided to Agency upon request.) 
 

5.5 Agency shall not have any right to discharge any employee of RGS from RGS 
employment. 

 
5.6 The provisions of this Agreement are not intended to create, nor shall they in way 

be interpreted or construed to create a joint venture, partnership, or any other 
similar relationship between the parties.   

 
5.7 RGS shall, at its sole expense, supply for its employees providing services to 

Agency pursuant to this Agreement any and all benefits, such as worker’s 
compensation, disability insurance, vacation pay, sick pay, or retirement benefits; 
obtain and maintain all licenses and permits usual or necessary for performing 
the services; pay any and all taxes incurred as a result of the employee(s) 
compensation, including employment or other taxes; and provide Agency with 
proof of payment of taxes on demand.  
 

Section 6. General Liability Coverage.  RGS, pursuant to California Government Code Section 
990, may satisfy its contractual liabilities with self-insurance and/or participate in a 
pooled risk purchasing program.  RGS has and will continue to maintain a program of 
liability coverage against claims for injuries to persons or damages to property that may 
arise from or in connection with the performance of the work hereunder by RGS and its 
agents, representatives, employees, and subcontractors.  

DocuSign Envelope ID: 4204C37C-E0F9-4B82-8472-782365D94F3A



 

Agreement for Management and Administrative Services [2/22 Rev3] Page 5 of 16 
Between the Desert Water Agency and Regional Government Services Authority March 19, 2024 

 

6.1 Workers’ Compensation Coverage. 
6.1.1 General requirements.  RGS shall, at its sole cost and expense, 

maintain Workers’ Compensation coverage and Employer’s Liability 
coverage with limits of not less than $1,000,000.00 per occurrence.   

6.1.2 Waiver of subrogation.  The Workers’ Compensation coverage shall be 
endorsed with or include a waiver of subrogation in favor of Agency for all 
work performed by RGS, its employees, agents, and subcontractors. 

 
6.2 Commercial General, Automobile, and Professional Liability Coverages. 

 
6.2.1 General requirements.  RGS, at its own cost and expense, shall 

maintain commercial general and automobile liability coverage for the 
term of this Agreement in an amount not less than $2,000,000 per 
occurrence, combined single limit coverage for risks associated with the 
work contemplated by this Agreement.  RGS shall additionally maintain 
commercial general liability coverage in an amount not less than 
$2,000,000 aggregated for bodily injury, personal injury, and property 
damage.   

 
6.2.2 Minimum scope of coverage.  RGS coverage may not be written on 

ISO forms but will always provide coverage at least as broad as the latest 
version of the following: (A) General Liability: Insurance Services Office 
Commercial General Liability coverage (occurrence form CG 0001); and 
(B) Automobile Liability: Insurance Services Office Business Auto 
Coverage form number CA 001, code 1 (any auto).  

 
6.3 Professional Liability Insurance.  RGS, at its own cost and expense, shall 

maintain for the period covered by this Agreement professional liability coverage 
for licensed professionals performing work pursuant to this Agreement in an 
amount not less than $2,000,000 covering the licensed professionals’ errors and 
omissions. 
 

6.4 All Policies Requirements. 

 
6.4.1 Coverage requirements.  Each of the following shall be included in the 

coverage or added as an endorsement: 
a. Agency and its officers, employees, and agents, shall be covered as 

additional covered parties with respect to RGS’ general commercial, 
and automobile coverage for claims, demands, and causes of action 
arising out of or relating to RGS’ performance of this Agreement 
and to the extent caused by RGS’ negligent act, error, or omission.   

b. An endorsement to RGS’ general commercial and automobile 
coverages must state that coverage is primary with respect to 
Agency and its officers, officials, employees and agents. 

c. All coverages shall be on an occurrence or an accident basis, and 
not on a claims-made basis. 

 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 4204C37C-E0F9-4B82-8472-782365D94F3A



 

Agreement for Management and Administrative Services [2/22 Rev3] Page 6 of 16 
Between the Desert Water Agency and Regional Government Services Authority March 19, 2024 

 

6.4.2 Acceptability of coverage providers.  All coverages required by this 
section shall be acquired through providers with a Bests' rating of no less 
than A: VII or through sources that provide an equivalent level of 
reliability. 

 
6.4.3 Verification of coverage.  Prior to beginning any work under this 

Agreement, RGS shall furnish Agency with notifications of coverage and 

with original endorsements effecting coverage required herein.  The 

notifications and endorsements are to be signed by a person authorized to 

bind coverage on its behalf.  Agency reserves the right to require complete, 

certified copies coverage at any time. 

6.4.4 Subcontractors.  RGS shall include all subcontractors as insureds under 
its coverage or shall furnish separate certificates and endorsements for 
each subcontractor.  All coverages for subcontractors shall be subject to all 
of the requirements stated herein. 
 

6.4.5 Variation.  During the term of this Agreement, RGS may change the 
insurance program in which it participates. RGS will provide reasonable 
notice of any such change to Agency and replacement copies of Certificates 
of Coverage and endorsements.  
 

6.4.6 Deductibles and Self-Insured Retentions.  RGS shall disclose any 
self-insured retention if Agency so requests prior to performing services 
under this Agreement or within a reasonable period of time of a request by 
Agency during the term of this Agreement. 
 

6.4.7 Maintenance of Coverages.  The coverages stated herein shall be 
maintained throughout the term of this Agreement and proof of coverage 
shall be available for inspection by Agency upon request. 
 

6.4.8 Notice of Cancellation or Reduction in Coverage.  In the event that 
any coverage required by this section is reduced, limited, or materially 
affected in any other manner, RGS shall provide written notice to Agency 
at RGS earliest possible opportunity and in no case later than five business 
days after RGS is notified of the change in coverage. 

 
Section 7. Legal Requirements. 

 
7.1 Governing Law.  The laws of the State of California shall govern this 

Agreement. 
 

7.2 Compliance with Applicable Laws.  RGS and any subcontractors shall 
comply with all laws applicable to the performance of the work hereunder. 
 

7.3 Reporting Requirements.  If there is a statutory or other legal requirement 
for RGS to report information to another government entity, RGS shall be 
responsible for complying with such requirements.    
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 4204C37C-E0F9-4B82-8472-782365D94F3A



 

Agreement for Management and Administrative Services [2/22 Rev3] Page 7 of 16 
Between the Desert Water Agency and Regional Government Services Authority March 19, 2024 

 

7.4 Other Governmental Regulations.  To the extent that this Agreement may 
be funded by fiscal assistance from another governmental entity, RGS and any 
subcontractors shall comply with all applicable rules and regulations to which 
Agency is bound by the terms of such fiscal assistance program. 

 
7.5 Licenses and Permits.  RGS represents and warrants to Agency that RGS and 

its employees, agents, and any subcontractors have all licenses, permits, 
qualifications, and approvals of whatsoever nature that are legally required to 
provide the services contemplated by this Agreement.  RGS represents and 
warrants to Agency that RGS and its employees, agents, and subcontractors shall, 
at their sole cost and expense, keep in effect at all times during the term of this 
Agreement any licenses, permits, and approvals that are legally required to 
practice their respective professions. 
 

7.6 Nondiscrimination and Equal Opportunity.  RGS shall not discriminate on 
the basis of a person’s race, religion, color, national origin, age, physical or 
mental handicap or disability, medical condition, marital status, sex, or sexual 
orientation, against any employee, applicant for employment, subcontractor, 
bidder for a subcontract, or participant in, recipient of, or applicant for any 
services or programs provided under this Agreement.  RGS shall comply with all 
applicable federal, state, and local laws, policies, rules, and requirements related 
to equal opportunity and nondiscrimination in employment, contracting, and the 
provision of any services that are the subject of this Agreement. 
 

Section 8. Keeping and Status of Records. 
 

8.1 Records Created as Part of RGS’ Performance.  All final versions of 
reports, data, maps, models, charts, studies, surveys, photographs, memoranda, 
plans, studies, specifications, records, files, or any other documents or materials, 
in electronic or any other form, that RGS prepares or obtains pursuant to this 
Agreement and that relate to the matters covered hereunder shall be the property 
of Agency.  RGS hereby agrees to deliver those documents to Agency upon 
termination of the Agreement, if requested.  It is understood and agreed that the 
documents and other materials, including but not limited to those described 
above, prepared pursuant to this Agreement are prepared specifically for Agency 
and are not necessarily suitable for any future or other use. 
 

8.2 Confidential Information.  RGS shall hold any confidential information 
received from Agency in the course of performing this Agreement in trust and 
confidence and will not reveal such confidential information to any person or 
entity, either during the term of the Agreement or at any time thereafter.  Upon 
expiration of this Agreement, or termination as provided herein, RGS shall return 
materials which contain any confidential information to Agency.  For purposes of 
this paragraph, confidential information is defined as all information disclosed to 
RGS which relates to Agency past, present, and future activities, as well as 
activities under this Agreement, which information is not otherwise of public 
record under California law.  Agency shall notify RGS what information and 
documents are confidential and thus subject to this section 8.2.   

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 4204C37C-E0F9-4B82-8472-782365D94F3A



 

Agreement for Management and Administrative Services [2/22 Rev3] Page 8 of 16 
Between the Desert Water Agency and Regional Government Services Authority March 19, 2024 

 

8.3 RGS Books and Records.  RGS shall maintain any and all ledgers, books of 
account, invoices, vouchers, canceled checks, and other records or documents 
evidencing or relating to charges for services or expenditures and disbursements 
charged to Agency under this Agreement for a minimum of 3 years, or for any 
longer period required by law, from the date of final payment under this 
Agreement. 

 

8.4 Inspection and Audit of Records.  Any records or documents that Section 
8.3 of this Agreement requires RGS to maintain shall be made available for 
inspection, audit, and/or copying at any time during regular business hours, 
upon oral or written request of Agency.  Under California Government Code 
Section 8546.7, if the amount of public funds expended under this Agreement 
exceeds $10,000.00, the Agreement shall be subject to the examination and audit 
of the State Auditor, at the request of Agency or as part of any audit of Agency, for 
a period of three years after final payment under the Agreement. 
 

Section 9. Non-assignment.  This Agreement is not assignable either in whole or in part without 
the written consent of the other party. 
 

Section 10. Amendments.  This Agreement may be amended or modified only by written 
Agreement signed by both Parties. 
 

Section 11. Validity.  The invalidity, in whole or in part, of any provisions of this Agreement shall 
not void or affect the validity of any other provisions of this Agreement. 
 

Section 12. Disputes.  Should any dispute arise out of this Agreement, Agency agrees that it shall 
only file a legal action against RGS, and shall not file any legal action against any of the 
public entities that are members of RGS. 
 

Section 13. Venue/Attorneys’ Fees.  Any suit or action initiated by either party shall be brought 
in Alameda County, California. In the event of litigation between the Parties hereto to 
enforce any provision of the Agreement, the prevailing Party shall be entitled to 
reasonable attorney’s fees and costs of litigation. 
 

Section 14. Mediation.  Should any dispute arise out of this Agreement, the Parties shall meet in 
mediation and attempt to reach a resolution with the assistance of a mutually acceptable 
mediator.  Neither Party shall be permitted to file legal action without first meeting in 
mediation and making a good faith attempt to reach a mediated resolution. The costs of 
the mediator, if any, shall be paid equally by the Parties. If a mediated settlement is 
reached, neither Party shall be deemed the prevailing party for purposes of the 
settlement and each Party shall bear its own legal costs. 

 

Section 15. Employment Offers to RGS Staff.  Should Agency desire to offer permanent or 
temporary employment to an RGS employee who is either currently providing RGS 
services to Agency or has provided RGS services to Agency within the previous six 
months, said Agency will be charged a fee equal to the full-time cost of the RGS 
employee for one month, using the most recent RGS bill rate for the RGS employee’s 
services to Agency.  This fee is to recover RGS’ expenses in recruiting the former and 
replacement RGS staff.  

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 4204C37C-E0F9-4B82-8472-782365D94F3A



 

Agreement for Management and Administrative Services [2/22 Rev3] Page 9 of 16 
Between the Desert Water Agency and Regional Government Services Authority March 19, 2024 

 

Section 16. Entire Agreement.  This Agreement, including the Exhibits, comprises the entire 
Agreement. 

 
Section 17. Indemnification. 
 

17.1 RGS’ indemnity obligations. 
RGS shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless Agency and its legislative body, 
boards and commissions, officers, and employees (“Indemnitees”) from and 
against all claims, demands, and causes of action by third parties, including but 
not limited to reasonable attorneys’ fees, arising out of RGS’ performance of this 
Agreement, to the extent caused by RGS’ negligent act, error, or omission.  
Nothing herein shall be interpreted as obligating RGS to indemnify Agency 
against its own negligence or willful misconduct.  
 
Training disclaimer  
Agency understands and acknowledges that RGS advisors may, as part of the 
scope of services under this Agreement, provide training on various matters 
including human resources, accounting, or management practices.  The advice 
and guidance included in such training does not, and is not intended to, 
constitute legal advice; instead, all information, content, and materials provided 
are based on industry best practices, but may not be applicable in all 
situations.   Agency staff should not act or refrain from acting on the basis of the 
information provided as part of a training without first seeking legal advice from 
counsel in its relevant jurisdiction and/or appropriate Agency approval.  RGS’ 
obligation to indemnify, defend, and hold harmless indemnities pursuant to this 
section 17.1 for professional errors and omissions shall not exceed $500,000. 
 

17.2 Agency’s indemnity obligations.  Agency shall indemnify, defend and hold 
harmless RGS and its officers, directors, employees and agents from any and all 
claims and lawsuits where such persons are named in the lawsuit solely because 
of a duty any of them performs in accordance with the services outlined in 
Exhibit B. 
 
It is the intent of the parties here to define indemnity obligations that are related 
to or arise out of Agency’s actions as a governmental entity.  Thus, Agency shall 
be required to indemnify and defend only under circumstances where a cause of 
action is stated against RGS, its employees or agents: 
 
a. which is unrelated to the skill they have used in the performance of the duties 

delegated to them under this Agreement; 
b. when the allegations in such cause of action do not suggest the active fraud or 

other misconduct of RGS, its employees, or agents; or  
c. where an Agency employee, if he had been acting in a like capacity, otherwise 

would be acting within the scope of that employment. 
 
Whenever Agency owes a duty hereunder to indemnify RGS, its employees or 
agents, Agency further agrees to pay RGS a reasonable fee for all time spent by 
any RGS employee, or spent by any person who has performed work pursuant to 
this Agreement, for the purpose of preparing for or testifying in any suit, action, 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 4204C37C-E0F9-4B82-8472-782365D94F3A



 

Agreement for Management and Administrative Services [2/22 Rev3] Page 10 of 16 
Between the Desert Water Agency and Regional Government Services Authority March 19, 2024 

 

or legal proceeding in connection with the services the assigned employee has 
provided under this Agreement. 
 

17.3 Obligations and indemnity related to defined benefit retirement plan 
participation. 

 
a. RGS and Agency acknowledge and agree that, if Agency participates in a 

defined benefit plan (such as CalPERS, a pension plan, or Social Security) 
(“Retirement Program”), it is possible that the Retirement Program may 
find that RGS employees providing services pursuant to this Agreement 
are employees of Agency and should be registered with the Retirement 
Program as employees of Agency, which possibility is the same as if 
Agency were contracting with a private consulting firm. Pursuant to 
Section 5.1 of this Agreement, Agency has an obligation to treat all persons 
working for or under the direction of RGS as agents and employees of 
RGS, and not as agents or employees of Agency.  Agency agrees not to ask 
RGS employees for personally identifying information. 
 

b. In the event that the Agency’s Retirement Program initiates an inquiry 
that includes examination of whether individuals providing services under 
this Agreement to Agency are Agency’s employees, Agency shall inform 
RGS within five business days and share all communications and 
documents from the Retirement Program that it may legally share.  In the 
event that either RGS or Agency files an appeal or court challenge, RGS 
and Agency each agree to cooperate with each other in responding to the 
inquiry and any subsequent administrative appeal or court challenge of an 
adverse determination. Notwithstanding Section 17.1 of this Agreement, 
RGS and Agency shall each bear their own costs in responding to an 
inquiry by a Retirement Program, including but not limited to costs of an 
administrative appeal or court challenge. 

 
c. In the event that any RGS employee or subconsultant providing services 

under this Agreement is determined by a court of competent jurisdiction 
or the Agency’s Retirement Program to be eligible for enrollment in the 
Retirement Program as an employee of the Agency, to the fullest extent of 
the law, Agency shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless RGS  for any 
Retirement Program contribution payment that Agency is required as a 
result to make to the Retirement Program as well as for the payment of 
any penalties and interest on such payments, if any. 

 
Section 18. Notices.  All notices required by this Agreement shall be given to Agency and RGS in 
writing, by first class mail, postage prepaid, or by email transmission addressed as follows: 

 
Agency: Desert Water Agency 
 1200 S. Gene Autry Trail 
 Palm Springs, CA  92264    
 
 
 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 4204C37C-E0F9-4B82-8472-782365D94F3A



 

Agreement for Management and Administrative Services [2/22 Rev3] Page 11 of 16 
Between the Desert Water Agency and Regional Government Services Authority March 19, 2024 

 

RGS: Regional Government Services Authority  
 P. O. Box 1350 
 Carmel Valley, CA  93924 
 Email: contracts@rgs.ca.gov 

 
Notice by email transmission shall be deemed given upon verification of receipt if received before 
5:00p.m. on a regular business day or else on the next business day. 
 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed on the date 
first written by their respective officers duly authorized on their behalf. 
 
 
DATED: __________ Agency 
 
 

By: __________________________________ 
       Esther Saenz, Finance Director 
  
 
 
 
DATED: __________ Regional Government Services Authority 
 
 
 By:   
 Sophia Selivanoff, Executive Director 
 
 
 
  

DocuSign Envelope ID: 4204C37C-E0F9-4B82-8472-782365D94F3A



 

Agreement for Management and Administrative Services [2/22 Rev3] Page 12 of 16 
Between the Desert Water Agency and Regional Government Services Authority March 19, 2024 

 

Exhibit A 
 
Compensation. 
1. Fees.  Agency agrees to pay to RGS the hourly rates set forth in the tables below for each RGS 

employee providing services to Agency, which are based in part on RGS’ full cost of 
compensation and support for the RGS employee(s) providing the services herein described. 
 
RGS and Agency acknowledge and agree that compensation paid by Agency to RGS under this 
Agreement is based upon RGS’ costs of providing the services required hereunder.  The Parties 
further agree adjustments to the hourly bill rate shown below for “RGS Staff” will be made on 
July 1 of each year, when RGS’ hourly bill rates will be adjusted by the percentage change in the 
Consumer Price Index (Bureau of Labor Statistics, CPI for urban wage earners and clerical 
workers in the San Francisco-Oakland-San Jose area) (“CPI”) for the twelve months through 
the end of December of the prior year.  Irrespective of the movement of the CPI, RGS will not 
adjust its hourly rates downward; nor will RGS adjust its hourly rates upward in excess of a five 
percentage (5%) change, excepting instances where there was no increase in the prior year’s 
hourly rates.  In that event, RGS will adjust its hourly rates by the full percentage change in the 
CPI for the twelve months through the end of December of the prior year.  
 

2. Reimbursement of RGS’ Direct Costs.  Agency shall reimburse RGS for direct external 
costs.  Direct external costs, including such expenses as travel or other costs incurred for the 
exclusive benefit of the Agency are not included in the hourly bill rate and, will be invoiced to 
Agency when received and without mark-up.  These external costs will be due upon receipt. 
 

3. Terms of Payment.  RGS shall submit invoices monthly for the prior month’s services.  
Invoices shall be sent approximately 10 days after the end of the month for which services were 
performed and are due and shall be delinquent if not paid within 30 days of receipt.  
Delinquent payments will be subject to a late payment carrying charge computed at a periodic 
rate of one-half of one percent per month, which is an annual percentage rate of six percent, 
which will be applied to any unpaid balance owed commencing 7 days after the payment due 
date.  Additionally, in the event the Agency fails to pay any undisputed amounts due to RGS 
within 15 days after payment due date, then Agency agrees that RGS shall have the right to 
consider said default a total breach of this Agreement and the duties of RGS under this 
Agreement may be terminated by RGS upon 5 working days’ advance written notice. 
 
Payment Process/Address.  RGS prefers invoices be paid electronically.   
RGS will reach out to your invoicing contact to establish and provide electronic payment 
instructions.   
 
However, should you have questions or need other payment options, please contact: 
 

Lindsay Rice, RGSA Accounting Manager 

(650) 587-7300X12 | lrice@rgs.ca.gov 

 

[EXHIBIT A CONTINUES ON FOLLOWING PAGE] 

  

DocuSign Envelope ID: 4204C37C-E0F9-4B82-8472-782365D94F3A

mailto:lrice@rgs.ca.gov


 

Agreement for Management and Administrative Services [2/22 Rev3] Page 13 of 16 
Between the Desert Water Agency and Regional Government Services Authority March 19, 2024 

 

 

AGENCY CONTACTS 
 
Agency Billing Contact.  Invoices are sent electronically only.  Please provide the contact person to 
whom invoices should be sent: 
 

NAME EMAIL 
Accounts Payable accountspayable@dwa.org 

 
 
Agency Insurance Contact.  Please provide the contact person to whom the certificate of coverage 
should be sent: 
 

NAME EMAIL 

Esther Saenz, Finance Director esaenz@dwa.org 

 
RGS STAFF RATES 

 
TITLE HOURLY 

RATE* 
Strategic Services Consultant $176 

Senior Advisor $150 
Advisor $128 

Technical Specialist $114 
Administrative Specialist $102 

*The Hourly Rate does not include direct external costs 
which will be invoiced to Agency with no markup and will 
fall outside of the not-to-exceed (if established) for services 
provided.   

 
  

DocuSign Envelope ID: 4204C37C-E0F9-4B82-8472-782365D94F3A

mailto:accountspayable@dwa.org


 

Agreement for Management and Administrative Services [2/22 Rev3] Page 14 of 16 
Between the Desert Water Agency and Regional Government Services Authority March 19, 2024 

 

Exhibit B 
 
Scope of Services.  Subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement, Regional Government 
Services Authority (RGS) will perform the strategic planning facilitation functions as described below.  
Services will primarily be provided remotely; some may be provided onsite at RGS’ discretion. 
Projects and activities may be modified upon the request of the Agency depending on emergent needs 
and issues. Agency will only be billed for the actual hours worked. 

PHASE ONE: KICK-OFF MEETING  

Activity consists of a single meeting of key process stakeholders. 

Deliverables: 

• Project meeting dates and timelines 

• Interview questions for the Board, Senior Managers, and external stakeholder groups 

• A list of external stakeholders and contact information 

• An internal contact who can assist with scheduling meetings 

• List of questions to be used in an employee survey 

• Obtain for review a copy of applicable documentation 

• Document a clear understanding of the form, format, and terminology for the final 

product. 

PHASE TWO: DATA COLLECTION AND ANALYSIS 

Data will be collected in three ways: 

• One-on-one interviews with Board members and senior DWA staff (e.g. General 

Manager, Finance Director, Human Resources Director) 

• Focus groups for external stakeholders conducted remotely 

• Surveys for all employees (If preferred by DWA, RGS could conduct focus groups for 

employee’s vs conducting a survey. However, it would incur additional costs) 

Task One: Conduct interviews with Board and executive staff. 

• Questions will be finalized with the Ad Hoc committee. 

Deliverables:  

Summary of Board and Executive Staff Interviews 

Task Two: Conduct stakeholders focus groups 

RGS will conduct up to three focus groups via Zoom. Focus group composition would be 

discussed and finalized with the Ad Hoc Committee. One of the focus groups would be for the 

public and two focus groups would be directed toward “partner agencies”. 

Deliverables: 

Summary of input/feedback from focus groups 

Task Three: Gather employee input 

Employee input will be gathered via electronic survey,  questions will be finalized with the Ad 

Hoc committee.  

DocuSign Envelope ID: 4204C37C-E0F9-4B82-8472-782365D94F3A



 

Agreement for Management and Administrative Services [2/22 Rev3] Page 15 of 16 
Between the Desert Water Agency and Regional Government Services Authority March 19, 2024 

 

Deliverables: 

• Email drafted for GM to announce the survey and distribute the survey link 

• Analysis and report of survey results 

• Final SWOT analysis to be used as the basis for the strategic plan 

PHASE THREE:  DEVELOP STRATEGIC PLAN FRAMEWORK 

Task One A: Meet with Board to draft mission and vision. 

The purpose of this meeting is for RGS to receive Board interests and input on the mission and 

vision statements for DWA. DWA Board will come to a general agreement on the mission and 

vision. If not, RGS will take the input and ideas and work with the Ad Hoc Committee to 

develop the mission and vision statements. 

Deliverables:   

• Summary of Board input 

• Draft mission and vision statements 

Task One B: Finalize mission and values statements 

If needed, RGS will facilitate a second meeting with the Board to finalize the mission and 

values.  

Deliverables:   

• Final mission and vision statements 

Task Two: Develop strategic priorities with Ad Hoc Committee 

During this meeting, RGS will provide a summary of input received from various stakeholder 

groups to the Ad-Hoc Committee and will facilitate the development of key strategic priorities 

based on the data collected and how success will be measured. 

It is recommended the Ad Hoc Committee include key internal staff in this meeting. 

Deliverables:  

• Report summarizing data gathered 

• PowerPoint presentation summarizing input and SWOT analysis 

• Three to five strategic priorities for use as the framework for the strategic plan 

Task Three: Develop Goals and Objectives 

RGS will conduct a 6-hour in-person meeting with the Ad Hoc Committee and key internal 

staff to develop goals/objectives that will drive the implementation of the DWA Strategic Plan.  

Deliverables: 

• Identification of goals/objectives that align with the strategic priorities and meet the 

“SMART” criteria 

  

DocuSign Envelope ID: 4204C37C-E0F9-4B82-8472-782365D94F3A



 

Agreement for Management and Administrative Services [2/22 Rev3] Page 16 of 16 
Between the Desert Water Agency and Regional Government Services Authority March 19, 2024 

 

Task Four: Meet with Ad Hoc Committee to Prepare for Board Strategic Planning 

Session 

During this meeting, RGS will provide a summary of the input received from various 

stakeholder groups, information required for the Executive Staff and Board of Directors to 

make informed decisions, and the final agenda for the Board strategic planning meeting. 

Deliverables: 

• Report summarizing input 

• PowerPoint presentation summarizing data collected 

• Additional information the Board may need to make informed decisions about the 

strategic plan 

• Final agenda for the Board strategic planning meeting 

• Clarity on the role of staff during the strategic planning process 

PHASE FOUR: FACILITATE BOARD OF DIRECTOR’S STRATEGIC PLANNING WORKSHOP 

Task One: Facilitate Board Strategic Planning Workshop 

The DWA Board’s strategic planning workshop will be conducted in person and completed in 

one 6-hour session. The purpose of the workshop will be to: 

a) Create context by sharing data collection and analysis 

b) Present final mission and vision statements 

c) Receive Board input and feedback on the strategic plan elements completed by staff 

Standard best practices for conducting meetings will be followed, including establishing 

ground rules, and clarifying decision-making processes. 

Deliverables:  

• Six-hour Board strategic planning workshop 

• Board feedback/input on strategic vision, mission, and strategic plan   

Task Two: Integrate Board input/feedback 

During this meeting RGS will ensure Board direction, input, and feedback are articulated in the 

draft strategic plan. 

Deliverable: 

• Integration of Board input and feedback to the strategic plan 

PHASE FIVE: FINAL DOCUMENTATION AND PRESENTATION OF STRATEGIC PLAN TO BOARD 

Final documentation of the strategic plan will include DWA’s mission, vision, strategic 

priorities, and goals/objectives.  

Deliverables: 

• Five-year strategic plan document 

• Presentation of the strategic plan to the Board 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 4204C37C-E0F9-4B82-8472-782365D94F3A



Certificate Of Completion
Envelope Id: 4204C37CE0F94B828472782365D94F3A Status: Sent

Subject: Complete with DocuSign: 2024-03-19 Desert Water Agency (Strg Plng).pdf

Source Envelope: 

Document Pages: 16 Signatures: 0 Envelope Originator: 

Certificate Pages: 2 Initials: 0 Anna Marie Will

AutoNav: Enabled

EnvelopeId Stamping: Enabled

Time Zone: (UTC-08:00) Pacific Time (US & Canada)

P.O. Box 1350 

Carmel Valley, CA  93924

awill@rgs.ca.gov

IP Address: 73.235.96.116  

Record Tracking
Status: Original

             3/12/2024 2:36:33 PM

Holder: Anna Marie Will

             awill@rgs.ca.gov

Location: DocuSign

Signer Events Signature Timestamp
Esther Saenz, DWA Finance Director

ESaenz@dwa.org

Security Level: Email, Account Authentication 
(None)

Sent: 3/12/2024 3:15:18 PM

Viewed: 3/12/2024 3:16:32 PM 

Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure: 
      Not Offered via DocuSign

Sophia Selivanoff

sselivanoff@rgs.ca.gov

Executive Director

Security Level: Email, Account Authentication 
(None)

Sent: 3/12/2024 2:38:08 PM

Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure: 
      Not Offered via DocuSign

In Person Signer Events Signature Timestamp

Editor Delivery Events Status Timestamp

Agent Delivery Events Status Timestamp

Intermediary Delivery Events Status Timestamp

Certified Delivery Events Status Timestamp

Carbon Copy Events Status Timestamp
Esther Saenz, DWA Finance Director

ESaenz@dwa.org

Security Level: Email, Account Authentication 
(None)

Sent: 3/12/2024 2:38:09 PM

Viewed: 3/12/2024 2:48:24 PM 

Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure: 
      Not Offered via DocuSign

Witness Events Signature Timestamp

Notary Events Signature Timestamp

Envelope Summary Events Status Timestamps
Envelope Sent Hashed/Encrypted 3/12/2024 2:38:09 PM

Envelope Updated Security Checked 3/12/2024 3:15:17 PM



Envelope Summary Events Status Timestamps
Envelope Updated Security Checked 3/12/2024 3:15:17 PM

Envelope Updated Security Checked 3/12/2024 3:15:17 PM

Envelope Updated Security Checked 3/12/2024 3:15:17 PM

Payment Events Status Timestamps



8-A 

X:\Sylvia\Board - Everything\Board - Staff Reports\Bd Memos - Ryan\031924 Item 8A Update Avenida Caballeros project staff report.docx 

  
STAFF REPORT  

TO 
DESERT WATER AGENCY 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 
MARCH 19, 2024 

 
RE:  UPDATE ON PHASE I OF 30” AVENIDA CABALLEROS PIPELINE 

REPLACEMENT PROJECT (RAMON ROAD TO TAHQUITZ 
CANYON WAY) 

 
The 2020/2021 Capital Improvement Budget includes Work Order No. 20-160 for a 
replacement pipeline project (approximately 2,500 linear feet of 30” ductile iron pipe), with 
a budget amount of $3,545,000, to include engineering, construction, inspection, and 
overhead costs. 
 
The project was divided into two phases. Phase I includes the installation of 
approximately 1,870 linear feet of 30” ductile iron pipe by traditional open trench method.  
Based on bidding documents, the project is estimated to be completed within 150 days 
of commencement. Phase II of the project will proceed once the required permits are 
issued by the Army Corp of Engineers (See Attachment #1). 
 
On May 4, 2023, Desert Water Agency received seven bids for the project. Weka, Inc. 
submitted the lowest bid, approximately 9.36% lower than the second lowest bid. On May 
16, 2023, the Board awarded the contract to Weka, Inc.  
 
Due to material delays, staff anticipated construction to begin in Fall 2023, with 
completion expected in Spring 2024.  
 
On December 20, 2023, the Agency and Weka, Inc. held a pre-construction meeting 
where various aspects of the project were discussed. Shortly after the pre-construction 
meeting, Weka informed the Agency that there would be a delay in precuring the large 
valves for the project, extending the project start date estimate to February 2024. On 
January 2, 2024, Weka, Inc. informed the Agency they would be mobilizing the week of 
January 22. 
 
On January 25, 2024, the Agency issued Weka, Inc a Notice to Proceed letter indicating 
that the Contractor had 150 calendar days (in accordance with the contract) to complete 
the project. A required Completion Date of June 23, 2024, was given to the contractor 
(See Attachment #2). After June 23, 2024, per the contract, the Agency may charge the 
Contractor $1,500 per day of liquidated damages. 
 
On March 7, 2024, Weka, Inc. began mobilizing for construction on Avenida Caballeros 
and is scheduled to complete the project by the Completion Date of June 23, 2024.  
 
 
 
 



2 
X:\Sylvia\Board - Everything\Board - Staff Reports\Bd Memos - Ryan\031924 Item 8A Update Avenida Caballeros project staff report.docx 

 
Fiscal Impact:  
None at this time                  
 
Legal Review: 
N/A 
 
Recommendation: 
Staff recommends that the Board of Directors take no action at this time. 
 
 
Attachments:  
Attachment #1 – Avenida Caballeros Aerial Image  
Attachment #2 – Notice to Proceed 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Phase I Project

Phase II Project





8-B 

X:\Sylvia\Board - Everything\Board - Staff Reports\Bd Memos - Steve\2024\031924 Item 8B Authorize board attendance county water task force staff report.docx 

 
 

STAFF REPORT  
TO 

DESERT WATER AGENCY 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 
MARCH 14, 2024 

 
RE: REQUEST AUTHORIZATION FOR BOARD ATTENDANCE 

AT THE RIVERSIDE COUNTY WATER TASK FORCE EVENT 
 
Attached for the Board’s consideration is a copy of the March 29 flyer titled “Have we 
reached a tipping point” which will discuss large scale investments in water projects. This 
is a Riverside County Water Task Force free event that will be held virtually. 
 
At its March 14 meeting, the Executive Committee requested this event be brought to the 
Board for review and to approve any Board Members wishing to attend. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Fiscal Impact: 
None. The budget includes Board meetings and conferences.  
 
Legal  Review: 
N/A 
 
Recommendation: 
Staff recommends that the Board approve and authorize those Board Members who are 
interested in attending this event in service to the Board. 
 
Attachments: 
Attachment#1 – Riverside County Water Task Force flyer 
 
 
   
 



 



9 

Page 1  
 

 
GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT 

MARCH 19, 2024 
 
 

 
VIP Tour with DHS City Manager 
DWA Board and staff hosted a tour on March 12 for Desert Hot Springs City Manager Frank J. 
Luckino. The tour included visits to the Mission Creek Groundwater Replenishment Facility, Well 
39, the Reclamation Plant, and the DWA lab.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 



Page 2  
 

 
 
 

       
SWRCB Releases Revised Draft Regulation on Making Water Conservation a California 
Way of Life 
 
On March 12, 2024, the State Water Resources Control Board (SWRCB) released a revised draft 
regulation on Making Water Conservation a California Way of Life. The SWRCB will hold a 
workshop regarding the revised draft regulation on March 20, 2024.  
 
The revised draft regulation includes four key changes that SWRCB staff highlighted among other 
changes based on feedback that they received in the latter half of 2023.  
 

1. Delaying and extending the reduction in the outdoor standard. 
2. Including the 20% allowance for outdoor areas that DWR categorized as Irrigable, Not 

Irrigated (INI) until the State provides new Landscape Area Measurement data. 
3. Delaying the compliance deadline with the objective to 2027. 
4. Simplifying the alternative compliance pathways and making them more broadly available. 

 
DWA staff will review the revised draft regulation, how it impacts DWA’s compliance, and develop 
a comment letter. The comment period for the revised draft regulation ends on March 27, 2024. 
 
The SWRCB noted that they expect the new regulation to go into effect in January of 2025. While 
this may not trigger compliance issues until 2027, it would require reporting. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 







Page 5  
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
Human Resource’s Meetings and Activities 
 
Meetings: 

02/20/2024 DWA Board Meeting DWA Offices  
02/26/2024 DWA Staff Meeting DWA Offices 
03/04/2024 DWA Staff Meeting DWA Offices 
03/05/2024 DWA Board Meeting DWA Offices 
03/11/2024 DWA Staff Meeting DWA Offices 

 
Activities: 

02/20/2024 Tyler Implementation Meeting Virtual Meeting 
02/21/2024 Tyler Implementation Meeting Virtual Meeting 
02/22/2024 Tyler Implementation Meeting Virtual Meeting 
02/27/2024 Conducted Water Service Worker I Interviews DWA Offices  
02/28/2024 Conducted Water Service Worker I Interviews DWA Offices  
02/29/2024 Conducted New Employee Orientation DWA Offices 
02/29/2024 Attended DWA Safety Meetings DWA Offices 
03/04/2024 Conducted DOT Random Testing DWA Offices 
03/06/2024 Tyler Implementation Meeting Virtual Meeting 
03/07/2024 Tyler Implementation Meeting Virtual Meeting 
03/08/2024 Conducted New Employee Orientation DWA Offices 
03/18/2024 Tyler Implementation Meeting Virtual Meeting 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 6  
 

 

 
General Manager’s Meetings and Activities 
 
Meetings: 

03/06/24 Tribal Mediation Meeting Conf Call 
03/06/24 DCP Update  Conf Call  
03/06/24 CVWD/DWA Tribal Mediation Coordination Meeting Conf Call 
03/07/24 Legislative Committee Meeting DWA 
03/07/24 Tribal Mediation Technical Team  Conf Call 
03/07/24 I.T. Department Update Conf Call 
03/07/24 SCE EV Charging Station Incentive Meeting   Conf Call 
03/11/24 Staff Department Heads Weekly Meeting DWA 
03/11/24 Tribal Mediation Small Group Meeting Conf Call 
03/12/24 Facilities Tour with DHS City Manager DWA 
03/12/24 Mission Creek Subbasin GM Quarterly Meeting Conf Call 
03/13/24 ESRI GIS Workshop DWA 
03/13/24 DWR GSA Workshop  Conf Call 
03/14/24 Executive Committee Meeting DWA 
03/14/24 CVWD/DWA Tribal Mediation Coordination Meeting Conf Call 
03/14/24 Tribal Mediation Technical Team Meeting Conf Call 
03/15/24 SWC Update Conf Call 
03/18/24 Staff Department Heads Weekly Meeting DWA 
03/18/24 Tribal Mediation Small Group Meeting Conf Call 
03/18/24 DWA/CVWD/MWD Coordination Meeting Conf Call 
03/19/24 DWA Bi-Monthly Board Meeting DWA 

 
Activities: 

1) DWA Surface Water Rights 
2) Water Supply Planning – DWA Area of Benefit 
3)   Sites Reservoir Finance 
4) DCP Financing 
5) Lake Perris Seepage Recovery Project Financing 
6) Recycled Water Supply - Strategic Planning 
7) AQMD Rule 1196 
8) DWA Organizational Restructuring 
9) DWA Tax Rate Analysis 
10) DWA Remote Meter Reading Fixed Network 
11) Whitewater River Surface Water Recharge 
12) Replacement Pipelines Projects 
13) DC Project – Finance JPA Committee (Standing) 
14) DWA/CVWD/MWD Operations Coordination (Standing) 
15) DWA/CVWD/MWD Exchange Agreement Coordination Committee (Standing) 
16) ACBCI Water Rights Lawsuit 
17) Whitewater Hydro Operations Coordination with Recharge Basin O&M 
18) Whitewater Spreading Basins – BLM Permits 
19) Delta Conveyance Project Cost Allocation 
20) MCSB Delivery Updates 
21) SWP East Branch Enlargement Cost Allocation 
22) RWQCB Update to the SNMP 

 


	031924 Board Agenda
	031924 Item 6A 022824 Conservation and Public Affairs Committee Minutes
	031924 Item 6B O & C report February
	Feb 2024 Website
	Feb 2024 Facebook Instagram
	Feb 2024 Nextdoor
	Feb 2024 Twitter

	031924 Item 6C 030524 Board Minutes
	031924 Item 6D 031424 Executive Comm Minutes
	031924 Item 6E Reaffirm Reso 1312 Emergency Repair Work staff report
	031924 Item 7A Customer appeal El Bostany staff report
	031924 Item 7A Customer appeal El Bostany staff report
	031924 Item 7A El Bostany appeal attach1
	031924 Item 7A El Bostany appeal attach2

	031924 Item 7B Adopt Bill Positions Reeb legislative report staff report
	031924 Item 7B Adopt Bill Positions Reeb legislative report staff report
	031924 Item 7B Adopt Bill positions DWA Legislative Report attach

	031924 Item 7C Authorize Finance Dir execute agreement RGS strategic planning staff report
	031924 Item 7C Authorize Finance Dir execute agreement RGS strategic planning staff report
	031924 Item 7C Authorize Finance Dir exec agrmt RGS Strategic Planning Services Proposal attach

	031924 Item 8A Update Avenida Caballeros project staff report
	031924 Item 8A Update Avenida Caballeros project aerial attach 1
	031924 Item 8A  Update Avenida Caballeros project update proceed notice attach 2

	031924 Item 8B Authorize board attendance county water task force staff report
	031924 Item 8B Riverside County Water Task Force virtual event attach

	031924 Item 9 GM Report



